

## NOTICE OF CHANGE TO TEXT AS ORIGINALLY PROPOSED

Amendments to the proposed text originally noticed to the public are indicated by double underline for newly added text and ~~double strikethrough~~ for text deleted from the original proposed text. The single underline and strikethrough formatting from the original proposed text noticed to the public has been retained.

The attached text contains the following changes:

### California Code of Regulations, Title 15, Division 3, Adult Institutions, Programs and Parole

#### Chapter 1. Rules and Regulations of Adult Operations and Programs.

##### Article 3.5 Credits.

~~Section 3042. Penal Code 2933 Credits.~~ (No additional changes to repealed section.)

##### Section 3043. Credit Earning, is amended to read:

~~Presentence. Credit for time served on a term prior to sentencing shall be awarded by the sentencing court pursuant to sections 2900.1, 2900.5 and 4019 of the Penal Code.~~

~~(a) Behavior. All inmates serving a determinate term of imprisonment for a crime committed before January 1, 1983, who have not waived the time credit provisions of Penal Code section 2931, shall be credited with a one fourth reduction on their term of imprisonment, unless all or part of such good behavior credit is denied or forfeited as the result of disciplinary action in the amounts listed in section 3323. Such credit shall be calculated from July 1, 1977 or the date of reception by the department, whichever is later.~~

~~(1) Except where otherwise prohibited by law, inmates sentenced under Penal Code section 190 to an indeterminate term of 15 years to life or 25 years to life and received by the department on or after May 27, 1987 shall be credited with a one fourth reduction on their minimum eligible parole date, unless all or part of such good behavior credit is denied or forfeited as the result of disciplinary action in the amounts listed in section 3323.~~

~~(b) Participation. All inmates described in subsection (a) shall be credited with a one twelfth reduction on their term unless all or part of such participation credit has been denied or forfeited as the result of disciplinary action for failure or refusal to participate and perform work and/or program assignments as ordered or directed.~~

~~(c) Milestone completion credits.~~

~~(1) Milestone means the achievement of a distinct objective of a rehabilitative program as established by CDCR in the Milestone Completion Credit Schedule (see 3043(c)(5)). If an inmate is eligible for program credits pursuant to PC section 2933.05, reaching a milestone allows for awarding of such credits.~~

~~(A) Milestone completion credits for GED academic achievements shall not be awarded to inmates already possessing a GED, high school equivalency/diploma or college degree.~~

~~(B) All inmates must sign the CDCR Form 2233 (Rev. 06/11), Inmate Declaration Of General Education Development (GED) Eligibility, which is hereby incorporated by reference, prior to taking any portion of the GED exam.~~

~~(2) In addition to any credit awarded pursuant to section 3042, credit reductions to reduce an eligible inmate's term of confinement may be awarded in increments of not less than one week, but no more than~~

~~six weeks in a twelve month period for achievement of specific program performance milestones concluding with the successful completion of in-prison or Alternative Custody Program (ACP), pursuant to Chapter 1, Article 6.8, section 3078, rehabilitative programs approved and listed by CDCR on the Milestone Completion Credit Schedule (see 3043(c)(5)). One week is equivalent to 7 calendar days.~~

~~(3) For the purposes of this section, in-prison or ACP rehabilitative programs shall include, but are not limited to academic programs, Career Technical Education programs, Cognitive Behavioral Treatment programs, substance abuse treatment, social life skills, and Enhanced Outpatient Program (EOP) group module treatment.~~

~~(4) Each program milestone shall identify the applicable credit reduction, and shall specify the performance measurement necessary for attainment. Performance measurements include the mastery/understanding of course curriculum demonstrated by completion of assignments, instructor evaluation and standardized testing. For EOP group module completions, in lieu of standardized testing, inmates must participate and successfully complete a minimum of 80 percent of all required group module treatment sessions in accordance with their mental health treatment plan within a 6 month period.~~

~~(5) Specific milestone completions and credits awarded are established by the Division of Rehabilitative Programs on the Milestone Completion Credit Schedule (Rev. 04/15), which is incorporated by reference. All changes to the Milestone Completion Credit Schedule shall be adopted in accordance with rulemaking requirements of the Administrative Procedures Act (Government Code sections 11340 through 11364).~~

~~(6) Program milestones earned in excess of six weeks within a twelve month period shall be applied at the beginning of the next twelve month period of continuous incarceration.~~

~~(A) For the purposes of this section, the 12 month period shall begin on the date when the first milestone completion credits are completed and verified by the Inmate Assignment Lieutenant. For ACP Participants, the 12 month period shall begin on the date when the first milestone completion credits are completed and verified by the ACP Program Manager or designee.~~

~~(B) Within 3 business days of completion of an approved performance milestone, the approved program instructor will certify completion of a milestone via a CDC Form 128-B (Rev. 4/74), General Chrono and forward the document to the Inmate Assignment Office. ACP Participants shall notify the ACP Case Manager or designee of completion of an approved performance milestone in writing and provide documentation of completion. The ACP Case Manager or designee will verify completion of the performance milestone and, upon verification, notify the ACP Program Manager of completion of a performance milestone within 3 business days via a CDCR Form 1502 Activity Report (Rev. 10/06).~~

~~(C) Upon receipt of General Chrono, within 3 business days, the inmate assignment lieutenant or custody staff member not less than the rank of lieutenant, or the ACP Program Manager or designee, will verify the inmate's eligibility for milestone completion credits and complete a CDC Form 128-G (Rev. 10/89), Classification Chrono and forward to Case Records.~~

~~(7) No milestone completion credits shall be awarded for incomplete performance milestones under any circumstances.~~

~~(8) Milestone completion credits awarded may be denied or forfeited due to disciplinary action.~~

~~(9) Inmates shall not be eligible for program milestone completion credits that result in an inmate being overdue for release.~~

~~(10) Upon parole or discharge, any program milestone completion credits unapplied shall be voided.~~

~~(d) Inmates assigned to the Western Interstate Corrections Compact or the Interstate Corrections Compact Agreement are eligible to earn Milestone Completion Credits in accordance with section 3042(b).~~

~~(e) Jail confinement. A reentry inmate who is confined in a local jail pending an investigation or disciplinary action, shall be classified and placed in an appropriate work group pursuant to section 3045.1.~~

~~(f) Return from work furlough. An inmate returned to an institution due to disciplinary action or refusal to participate in assigned work, education or vocational assignment shall be placed in work group A 2, or to workgroup C (non credit earning) by a re entry classification committee.~~

~~(g) Heroic acts and exceptional assistance. Up to 12 months reduction of sentence may be awarded for the following acts:~~

~~(1) Acts preventing loss of life or injury to the public, staff, or other inmates.~~

~~(2) Acts preventing significant loss or destruction of property.~~

~~(3) Providing sworn testimony in judicial proceedings involving prosecution of a felony offense which occurred within the prison.~~

~~(h) Case records staff shall process and calculate inmate Milestone Completion Credits in accordance with subsection 3042(d).~~

~~(i) Reentry Hub inmates removed from the program adversely shall be classified and placed in an appropriate work group as described in Section 3044.~~

~~Note: Authority cited: Sections 2700, 5058, 5058.3 and 1170.05, Penal Code. Reference: Sections 1170.05, 2931, 2933, 2933.05, 2935, 5054, 6260, 11189 and 11190, Penal Code; *In re Monigold*, 205 Cal. App. 3d 1224, and *People v. Jones*, 44 Cal.Rptr.2d 164 (Cal. 1995).~~

(a) General. Inmates are expected to work or participate in rehabilitative programs and activities to prepare for their eventual return to society. Inmates who comply with the regulations and rules of the department and perform the duties assigned to them ~~him or her~~ shall be eligible to earn Good Conduct Credit as set forth in section 3043.2 of this article ~~below~~. ~~In addition~~ Unless otherwise precluded by this article, all inmates who participate in approved rehabilitative programs and activities, including inmates housed in administrative segregation housing units, in security housing units, in psychiatric services units, or in other segregated housing placement units, shall be eligible to earn Milestone Completion Credit, Rehabilitative Achievement Credit, and Educational Merit Credit as set forth in sections 3043.3, 3043.4, and 3043.5 of this article ~~below~~. The award of these credits, as well as Extraordinary Conduct Credit as set forth in section 3043.6 of this article ~~below~~, shall advance an inmate's release date if sentenced to a determinate term or advance an inmate's initial parole hearing date pursuant to subdivision (a)(2) of section 3041 of the Penal Code if sentenced to an indeterminate term with the possibility of parole. Inmates who do not comply with the regulations and rules of the department or who do not perform the duties assigned to them ~~him or her~~ shall be subject to credit forfeiture as provided in this article.

(b) Inmate Participation in Credit Earning Programs and Activities. All eligible inmates shall have a reasonable opportunity to earn Good Conduct Credit, Milestone Completion Credit, Rehabilitative Achievement Credit, and Educational Merit Credit ~~participate in credit earning programs and activities~~ in a manner consistent with the availability of staff, space, and resources, as well as the unique safety and security considerations of each prison. No credit shall be awarded for incomplete, partial, or unsatisfactory participation in the credit earning programs or activities described in this article, nor shall credit be awarded for diplomas, degrees, or certificates that cannot be verified after due diligence by department staff.

(c) Release Date Restriction. Under no circumstance shall ~~a~~ ~~determinately~~ sentenced inmate be awarded credit or have credit restored by the department which advances ~~the date of~~ his or her release to a date less

than 60 calendar days from the date the award or restoration of such credit is entered into the department's information technology system, except pursuant to a court order.

(d) Participation by Inmates Sentenced as Adults and Housed In the Division of Juvenile Justice or Placed In an Alternative Custody Setting. Inmates sentenced as adults and housed in a facility administered by the department's Division of Juvenile Justice or placed in an alternative custody setting prior to parole, including a pre-parole or re-entry program, are eligible to participate in Good Conduct Credit, Milestone Completion Credit, Rehabilitative Achievement Credit, Educational Merit Credit, and Extraordinary Conduct Credit. Placement in an alternative custody setting means transfer of an inmate, prior to parole, to serve the remainder of his or her term of incarceration in a community based re-entry facility administered by the department in lieu of confinement in a state prison or Department of Forestry and Fire Protection fire camp.

(e) Participation by Inmates Housed In A Different Jurisdiction. Inmates serving criminal sentences under California law but housed in a different jurisdiction, including those participating in the Western Interstate Corrections Compact, participating in the Interstate Corrections Compact Agreement, or housed in a facility administered by a county sheriff, housed in a facility administered by the California Department of State Hospitals, or housed in a facility administered by the Federal Bureau of Prisons, are only eligible to participate in Good Conduct Credit, Educational Merit Credit, or Extraordinary Conduct Credit as described in this article, subject to the criteria set forth in subsection (b) of this section ~~above~~.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Sections 5054 and 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a)(2); Section 3041, Penal Code.

**~~Section 3043.1 Waiver~~** (No additional changes to repealed section.)

**New Section 3043.1. Pre-Sentence Credit.** (No additional changes to adopted section.)

**~~Section 3043.2 Loss of Participation Credit.~~** (No additional changes to repealed section.)

**New Section 3043.2. Good Conduct Credit, is amended to read:**

(a) The award of Good Conduct Credit requires that an inmate comply with the rules and regulations of a prison and perform the duties assigned on a regular and satisfactory basis.

(b) Notwithstanding any other authority to award or limit credit, effective May 1, 2017, the award of Good Conduct Credit shall advance an inmate's release date if sentenced to a determinate term or advance an inmate's initial parole hearing date pursuant to subdivision (a)(2) of section 3041 of the Penal Code if sentenced to an indeterminate term with the possibility of parole pursuant to the following schedule:

(1) No credit shall be awarded to an inmate sentenced to death or a term of life without the possibility of parole;

(2) One day of credit for every four days of incarceration (20%) shall be awarded to an inmate serving a determinate or indeterminate term for a violent felony as defined in ~~Penal Code section 667.5~~, subdivision (c) of section 667.5 of the Penal Code, unless the inmate qualifies under paragraph (4)(B) of this section ~~below~~ or is statutorily eligible for greater credit pursuant to the provisions of Article 2.5 (commencing with section 2930) of Chapter 7 of Title I of Part 3 of the Penal Code;

(3) One day of credit for every two days of incarceration (33.3%) shall be awarded to an inmate sentenced under the Three Strikes Law, under ~~Penal Code section 1170.12~~, subdivision (c) of section 1170.12 of the Penal Code, or under ~~section 667~~, subdivisions (c) or (e) of section 667 of the Penal Code, who is not serving a term for a violent felony as defined in ~~Penal Code section 667.5~~, subdivision (c) of section

667.5 of the Penal Code, unless the inmate is serving a determinate sentence and qualifies under paragraph (5)(B) of this section below:

(4) One day of credit for every day of incarceration (50%) shall be awarded to:

(A) An inmate not otherwise identified in paragraphs (1)-(3) above; ~~or~~

(B) An inmate serving a determinate term for a violent felony as defined in ~~Penal Code section 667.5~~, subdivision (c) of section 667.5 of the Penal Code who ~~after the inmate~~ has successfully completed the requisite physical fitness training and firefighting training to be assigned as a firefighter to a Department of Forestry and Fire Protection fire camp or as a firefighter at a Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation firehouse; or

(C) An inmate serving a determinate term for a violent felony as defined in subdivision (c) of section 667.5 of the Penal Code who is housed at a Department of Forestry and Fire Protection fire camp in a role other than firefighter.

(5) Two days of credit for every day of incarceration (66.6%) shall be awarded to:

(A) An inmate eligible to earn day-for-day credit (50%) pursuant to paragraph (4)(A) above who is assigned to Minimum A Custody or Minimum B Custody pursuant to section 3377.1; ~~or~~

(B) An inmate serving a determinate sentence who is not serving a term for a violent felony as defined in ~~Penal Code section 667.5~~, subdivision (c) of section 667.5 of the Penal Code who ~~after the inmate~~ has successfully completed the requisite physical fitness training and firefighting training to be assigned as a firefighter to a Department of Forestry and Fire Protection fire camp or as a firefighter at a Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation firehouse; or

(C) An inmate serving a determinate sentence who is not serving a term for a violent felony as defined in subdivision (c) of section 667.5 of the Penal Code who is housed at a Department of Forestry and Fire Protection fire camp in a role other than firefighter.

(c) For purposes of placement in an alternative custody setting the department shall consider the Good Conduct Credit that may be earned during the inmate's incarceration. An inmate who is placed in an alternative custody setting, including a pre-parole or re-entry program, shall be awarded the same Good Conduct Credit that the inmate earned prior to that placement.

~~(d)~~ Credit Forfeiture and Restoration. Good Conduct Credit shall be forfeited in whole-day increments upon placement in a zero-credit work group pursuant to ~~subsections 3044(b)(4) or 3044(b)(6) of section 3044~~ or a finding of guilt of a serious rule violation in accordance with section 3323. Forfeited credit under this section shall be restored if the disciplinary action is reversed pursuant to an administrative appeal or court of law. Forfeited credit may also be restored in accordance with Article 5.5 of Subchapter 4 of Chapter 1 of Division 3 of Title 15 of the California Code of Regulations.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Sections 5054 and 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a)(2); Sections 667, 667.5, 1170.2, 2930 and 3041, Penal Code.

**~~Section 3043.3 Loss of Behavior, PC 2933, or PC 2933.05 Credit.~~** (No additional changes to repealed section.)

**New Section 3043.3. Milestone Completion Credit. is amended to read:**

(a) The award of Milestone Completion Credit requires the achievement of a distinct objective of approved rehabilitative programs, including academic programs, substance abuse treatment programs, social life skills programs, Career Technical Education programs, Cognitive Behavioral Treatment programs, Enhanced Outpatient Program group module treatment programs, or other approved programs

with similar demonstrated rehabilitative qualities. To be awarded such credit, the inmate shall participate in all required classroom activities for the duration of the program, to include any subcomponents required in the curriculum for that program. Passing an exam alone shall not qualify for the award of such credit.

(b) Milestone Completion Credit for completing academic courses related to a high school diploma ~~General Education Development (GED), Test of Adult Basic Education (TABE), and Comprehensive Adult Student Assessment System (CASAS) achievements~~ shall not be awarded to inmates already possessing a ~~GED~~, high school diploma, high school equivalency approved by the California Department of Education, or college degree.

(c) Notwithstanding any other authority to award or limit credit, effective August 1, 2017, all inmates eligible for Good Conduct Credit pursuant to section 3043.2 shall be eligible for Milestone Completion Credit pursuant to this section. The award of Milestone Completion Credit shall advance an inmate's release date if sentenced to a determinate term or advance an inmate's initial parole hearing date pursuant to subdivision (a)(2) of section 3041 of the Penal Code if sentenced to an indeterminate term with the possibility of parole. Milestone Completion Credit shall be awarded in increments of not less than one week, but no more than twelve weeks in a twelve-month period. Milestone Completion Credit earned in excess of this limit shall be awarded to the inmate on his or her next credit anniversary, defined as one year after the inmate completes his or her first Milestone Completion Credit program, and each year thereafter. Upon release to parole, release to community supervision, or discharge from parole ~~prison~~, any excess credit under this section shall be deemed void. If instead an inmate completes one term and immediately begins serving a consecutive term, any excess credit awarded under this section shall be applied to that consecutive term. One week is equivalent to seven ~~(7)~~ calendar days.

(d) A Milestone Completion Credit Schedule (REV ~~311/17~~), approved by the Director of the Division of Adult Institutions under the direction of the Secretary ~~and in conjunction with the Director of the Division of Rehabilitative Programs and the Undersecretary of Health Care Services~~, is hereby incorporated by reference. The schedule identifies all of the approved Milestone Completion Credit programs, the corresponding credit reduction for successful completion of each program, and whether credit for repeating the program is authorized ~~may be repeated for credit~~. The director may authorize a program be repeated for credit if there are significant rehabilitative benefits to be gained by those inmates who retake the program.

(e) Standard Performance Criteria. Standard ~~p~~Performance criteria for the award of Milestone Completion Credit include the mastery or understanding of course curriculum by the inmate as demonstrated by completion of assignments, instructor evaluations, and ~~standardized~~ testing processes. Within ten business days of completion of an approved credit earning program under this section, the instructor shall verify completion of the program in the department's information technology system. Within ten additional business days, a designated system approver shall verify the inmate's eligibility for such credit.

(f) Modified Performance Criteria.

(1) In lieu of the above standard performance criteria, participants in approved prison housing units with structured, full-time rehabilitative programming or in approved alternative custody settings may be awarded credit under this section in the following increments: three weeks of credit (the equivalent of 21 calendar days) for completion of every three months of program plan activities up to a maximum of twelve weeks of credit in a twelve-month period. Within ten business days of completing three months of program plan activities under this subsection a designated system approver shall be responsible for verifying and awarding credit to such participants.

(2) In lieu of the above standard performance criteria, Enhanced Outpatient Program participants, Developmentally Disabled Program participants, and participants in an approved mental health inpatient program, excluding those in a mental health crisis bed, may be awarded credit under this section by successfully completing scheduled, structured therapeutic activities in accordance with their mental health treatment plan or, if applicable, their Developmentally Disabled Program=~~group assignment~~, in the following increments: one week of credit (the equivalent of seven calendar days) for every 60 hours completed up to a maximum of six weeks of credit for 360 hours completed in a twelve-month period. Within ten business days of completing 60 hours of scheduled, structured therapeutic activities under this subsection the Chief of Mental Health at each institution shall be responsible for verifying and awarding credit to such participants.

~~(f) Within ten (10) business days of completion of an approved credit earning program under this section, the instructor shall verify completion of the program in the department's information technology system. Within ten (10) additional business days, a designated system approver shall verify the inmate's eligibility for such credit. The Chief of Mental Health at each institution shall be responsible for verifying and awarding credit to Enhanced Outpatient Program participants.~~

(g) For purposes of placement in an alternative custody setting the department shall consider the Milestone Completion Credit that may be earned during the inmate's incarceration.

~~(h)~~ Credit Forfeiture and Restoration. Milestone Completion Credit shall be forfeited in whole-day increments upon a finding of guilt of a serious rule violation in accordance with section 3323, only after all Good Conduct Credit is exhausted. Forfeited credit under this section shall be restored if the disciplinary action is reversed pursuant to an administrative appeal or court of law.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Sections 5054 and 5058, Penal Code.

Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a)(2); Sections 2933.05 and 3041, Penal Code.

**~~Section 3043.4 Non Credit Earning.~~** (No additional changes to repealed section.)

**New Section 3043.4. Rehabilitative Achievement Credit. is amended to read:**

(a) The award of Rehabilitative Achievement Credit requires verified attendance and satisfactory participation in approved group or individual activities which promote the educational, behavioral, or rehabilitative development of an inmate. To qualify for credit under this section, the purpose, expected benefit, program materials, and membership criteria of each proposed activity, as well as any affiliations with organizations or individuals outside of the department, must be pre-approved by the institution. The meeting frequency and location of each activity shall only be approved under safe and secure conditions. Inmate participation in such activities shall be consistent with his or her custodial classification, work group assignment, privilege group, and other safety and security considerations.

(b) Notwithstanding any other authority to award or limit credit, effective August 1, 2017, all inmates eligible for Good Conduct Credit pursuant to section 3043.2 shall be eligible for Rehabilitative Achievement Credit pursuant to this section. The award of Rehabilitative Achievement Credit shall advance an inmate's release date if sentenced to a determinate term or advance an inmate's initial parole hearing date pursuant to subdivision (a)(2) of section 3041 of the Penal Code if sentenced to an indeterminate term with the possibility of parole.

(c) Standard Award Increments. Rehabilitative Achievement Credit shall be awarded in the following increments: one week of credit for every 52 hours of participation in approved rehabilitative activities up to a maximum of four weeks of credit for 208 hours of participation in a twelve-month period.

(d) Modified Award Increments. Rehabilitative Achievement Credit shall be awarded to inmates housed in a facility administered by the department's Division of Juvenile Justice or placed in an alternative custody setting prior to parole, including a pre-parole or re-entry program, in the following increments: one week of credit for every three months of participation up to a maximum of four weeks of credit in a twelve-month period.

(e) Rehabilitative Achievement Credit earned in excess of this limit during a single year (which shall commence after the inmate completes his or her first 52 hours of such activities and each year thereafter) shall be deemed void. Upon release to parole, release to community supervision, or discharge from parole prison, any excess credit under this section shall also be deemed void. One week is equivalent to seven 7 calendar days.

(fe) Under the direction of the Secretary and in conjunction with the Director of the Division of Adult Institutions, every Warden shall periodically (but no less than once per ~~calendar~~ year) issue a separate local rule in compliance with subdivision (c) of section 5058 of the Penal Code for each particular prison or other correctional facility identifying the Rehabilitative Achievement Credit activities which comply with subsection (a) of this section and are approved at that location.

(gd) Within ten ~~(10)~~ business days of completing 52 hours of approved activity under this section, staff designated by the Warden at each institution shall verify the inmate's completion of the hours necessary for this credit, confirm the inmate's eligibility to receive this credit, and ensure the credit is awarded to the inmate in the department's information technology system.

(h) For purposes of placement in an alternative custody setting the department shall consider the Rehabilitative Achievement Credit that may be earned during the inmate's incarceration.

(ie) Credit Forfeiture and Restoration. Rehabilitative Achievement Credit shall be forfeited in whole-day increments upon a finding of guilt of a serious rule violation in accordance with section 3323, only after all Good Conduct Credit is exhausted. Forfeited credit under this section shall be restored if the disciplinary action is reversed pursuant to an administrative appeal or court of law.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Sections 5054 and 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a)(2); Section 3041, Penal Code.

**Section 3043.5. Educational Merit Credit. is amended to read:**

(a) The award of Educational Merit Credit requires the achievement of a significant academic accomplishment which will provide inmates with life-long rehabilitative benefits. Specifically, the achievement of a high school diploma (or high school ~~its~~ equivalency ~~approved by the California Department of Education~~), a collegiate degree (at the associate, bachelor, or post-graduate level), or a professional certificate as an Alcohol and Drug Counselor shall entitle an inmate to the benefits of this credit.

(b) Notwithstanding any other authority to award or limit credit, effective August 1, 2017, all inmates eligible for Good Conduct Credit pursuant to section 3043.2 shall be eligible for Educational Merit Credit pursuant to this section. The award of Educational Merit Credit shall advance an inmate's release date if sentenced to a determinate term or advance an inmate's initial parole hearing date pursuant to subdivision (a)(2) of section 3041 of the Penal Code if sentenced to an indeterminate term with the possibility of parole. Educational Merit Credit shall be awarded in the increments set forth in the schedule below upon demonstrated completion of the corresponding diploma, certificate, or degree:

<u>Category</u>	<u>Description</u>	<u>Credit</u>
<u>1</u>	<u>High School Diploma, <del>GED</del>, or High School Equivalency approved by the California Department of Education</u>	<u>90 days</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>Offender Mentor Certification Program (alcohol and other drug counselor certification recognized and approved by the California Department of Health Care Services)</u>	<u>180 days</u>
<u>3</u>	<u>Associate of Arts or Science Degree</u>	<u>180 days</u>
<u>4</u>	<u>Bachelor of Arts or Science Degree</u>	<u>180 Days</u>
<u>5</u>	<u>Post-Graduate Degree</u>	<u>180 days</u>

(c) Credit for each category listed in subsection (b) of this section ~~above~~ shall only be awarded once to an inmate upon proof the diploma, certificate, or degree was conferred during the inmate's current term of incarceration. Educational Merit Credit for achieving a high school diploma or high school equivalency as approved by the California Department of Education shall not be awarded to inmates already possessing a high school diploma, approved equivalent, or college degree prior to the date the inmate was received in prison for his or her current period of incarceration. Educational Merit Credit shall not be awarded for an ~~A~~Associate, ~~B~~bachelor, or ~~P~~post-~~G~~graduate degree, unless the inmate earned at least 50 percent of the units necessary for that degree while serving his or her current term, the degree was conferred by a regionally accredited institution, and the inmate arranged for an official, sealed copy of their transcript to be sent by the educational institution directly to the Principal at the inmate's institution. Credit for ~~such~~ degrees earned before August 1, 2017, but during an inmate's current term of incarceration, shall be ~~eligible for credit~~ effective on the date the credit is entered into the department's information technology system.

(d) Within 30 calendar days of receiving documentation from an inmate indicating completion of an Educational Merit Credit, during the inmate's current term of incarceration, department staff shall verify completion of the diploma, certificate, or degree in the department's information technology system.

(e) Upon release to parole, release to community supervision, or discharge from parole ~~prison~~, any excess credit under this section shall be deemed void. If instead an inmate completes one term and immediately begins serving a consecutive term, any excess credit shall be applied to that consecutive term.

(f) Credit Forfeiture. Educational Merit Credit shall not be forfeited due to disciplinary action.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Sections 5054 and 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a)(2); Section 3041, Penal Code.

**Section 3043.6. Extraordinary Conduct Credit, is amended to read:**

(a) Notwithstanding any other authority to award or limit credit, effective August 1, 2017, the Director of the Division of Adult Institutions, under the direction of the Secretary, may award up to ~~twelve~~<sup>12</sup> months of Extraordinary Conduct Credit to any inmate who has performed a heroic act in a life-threatening situation or who has provided exceptional assistance in maintaining the safety and security of a prison, in accordance with ~~subsection 3376(d)(3)(C) of section 3376 or subsection 3376.1(d)(6) of section 3376.1.~~ No credit shall be awarded to an inmate sentenced to death or a term of life without the possibility of parole.

(b) The award of such credit shall advance the inmate's release date if sentenced to a determinate term or advance the inmate's initial parole hearing date pursuant to subdivision (a)(2) of section 3041 of the Penal Code if sentenced to an indeterminate term with the possibility of parole.

(c) Upon release to parole, release to community supervision, or discharge from parole prison, any excess credit under this section shall be deemed void. If instead an inmate completes one term and immediately begins serving a consecutive term, any excess credit shall be applied to that consecutive term.

(d) Credit Forfeiture. Extraordinary Conduct Credit shall not be forfeited due to disciplinary action.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Sections 5054 and 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a)(2); Sections 2935 and 3041, Penal Code.

**~~Section 3043.7. Impact of 45 Day Notification on Credit Earnings.~~** (No additional changes to repealed section.)

**Amended Section 3043.7 Special Assignments.** (No additional changes.)

**Amended Section 3043.8. Impact of Transfer on Credit Earning.** (No additional changes.)

**Amended Section 3044. Inmate Work Groups.** (No additional changes.)

## Chapter 1. Rules and Regulation of Adult Operations and Programs.

### Subchapter 5.5

#### PAROLE CONSIDERATION.

##### Article 1

#### Parole Consideration for Determinately-Sentenced Nonviolent Offenders.

##### **Section 3490. Definitions. is amended to read:**

For the purposes of this article, the following definitions shall apply:

(a) An inmate is a “Nonviolent Offender” if ~~none is an inmate who is not any~~ of the following are true:

~~(1) The inmate is cōndemned to death;~~

~~(2) The inmate is currently incarcerated for a term of life without the possibility of parole;~~

~~(3) The inmate is currently ~~or~~ incarcerated for a term of life with the possibility of parole for a “violent felony;”~~

~~(4) The inmate is currently serving a determinate term prior to beginning a term of life with the possibility of parole for a “violent felony” or prior to beginning a term for an in-prison offense that is a “violent felony;”~~

~~(5) The inmate is currently sServing a term of incarceration for a “violent felony;” or~~

~~(6) The inmate is currently serving a term of incarceration for a nonviolent felony offense after completing a concurrent determinate term for a “violent felony.” Convicted of a sexual offense that requires registration as a sex offender under Penal Code section 290.~~

(b) Notwithstanding subsection (a), a “Nonviolent Offender” includes the following:

~~(1) An inmate who has completed a determinate term of incarceration for a violent felony and is currently serving a concurrent term for a nonviolent felony offense;~~

~~(2) An inmate who has completed a determinate or indeterminate term of incarceration and is currently serving a determinate term for an nonviolent in-prison offense that is not a “violent felony.”~~

(c) “Violent Felony” is a crime or enhancement as defined in ~~Penal Code section 667.5, subdivision (c) of section 667.5 of the Penal Code.~~

(d) “Primary Offense” means the single crime for which any sentencing court imposed the longest term of imprisonment, excluding all enhancements, alternative sentences, and consecutive sentences.

(e) “Full Term” means the actual number of days, months, and years imposed by the sentencing court for the inmate’s primary offense, not including any sentencing credits.

(f) A “Nonviolent Parole Eligible Date” is the date on which ~~an inmate who qualifies as a nonviolent offender who is eligible for parole consideration under section 3491 has served the full term of his or her primary offense, less any actual days served prior to pre-sentence credits applied by the sentencing as ordered by the court for time served under Penal Code section 2900.5 of the Penal Code and any actual days served time spent~~ in custody between sentencing and the date the inmate is received by the department.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Section 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a); 1170.1, subdivision (c), Penal Code; ~~In re Reeves (2005) 35 Cal.4th 765; In re Tate (2006) 135 Cal.App.4th 756; In re Thompson (1985) 172 Cal.App.3d 256.~~

**Section 3491. ~~Initial Eligibility Review Determination~~, is amended to read:**

~~(a) A nonviolent offender, as defined in sections 3490(a) and 3490(b), shall be eligible for parole consideration by the Board of Parole Hearings under chapter 3, article 15, division 2, of this title. By June 1, 2017, the department shall begin the initial eligibility determination for nonviolent offenders as defined in section 3490.~~

~~(b) Notwithstanding subsection (a), an inmate is not eligible for parole consideration by the Board of Parole Hearings under chapter 3, article 15, division 2, of this title if any of the following apply:~~

~~(1) The inmate is currently incarcerated for a term of life with the possibility of parole for an offense that is not a violent felony or the inmate is currently serving a determinate term prior to beginning a term of life with the possibility of parole for an offense that is not a “violent felony;”~~

~~(2) Within one year of the date of the eligibility review, the inmate will be eligible for a parole consideration hearing under section 3051 or 3055 of the Penal Code or the inmate has already been scheduled for an initial parole consideration hearing under sections 3051 or 3055 of the Penal Code; or~~

~~(3) The inmate is convicted of a sexual offense that currently requires or will require registration as a sex offender under the Sex Offender Registration Act, codified in sections 290 through 290.024 of the Penal Code.~~

~~(c) Once ~~the department completes the initial eligibility determination for inmates already under the custody of the department, it shall complete an~~ the initial eligibility review within 60 calendar days of ~~determination upon~~ an inmate’s admission to the department.~~

~~(d) Regardless of a prior initial eligibility determination, ~~the department shall conduct a new eligibility review determination whenever an official record, such as an sentencing court issues a new or amended abstract of judgment or minute order, is received that affects~~ changes the inmate’s eligibility under this article ~~conviction(s) or term(s) of imprisonment, when an inmate begins serving a term for an in-prison offense that is not a violent felony, or when an inmate is within one year of being eligible for a parole consideration hearing under section 3051 or 3055 of the Penal Code.~~~~

~~(e) The department shall conduct an ~~initial eligibility determination~~ review by completing ~~all of the following steps:~~~~

~~(1) The department shall determine if the inmate ~~is eligible for parole consideration by the Board of Parole Hearings under meets the definition of a nonviolent offender in section 3490, subsections~~ ~~divisions~~ (a) and (b), of this section. ~~article;~~~~

~~(2) If the inmate is eligible for parole consideration by the Board of Parole Hearings under subsections (a) and (b), ~~the department shall identify the primary offense, as defined in under section 3490, subdivision~~ (d), of this article, ~~and~~~~

~~(A) If at the time of the eligibility review the inmate is serving a term or terms for crimes committed prior to his or her arrival to prison, the terms for any in-prison crimes shall not be considered when identifying the inmate’s primary offense.~~

~~(B) If at the time of the eligibility review the inmate is serving a term or terms for crimes committed after his or her arrival to prison, only the terms for all in-prison crimes currently being served or yet to be served shall be considered when identifying the inmate’s primary offense.~~

~~(3) If the inmate is eligible for parole consideration by the Board of Parole Hearings under subsections (a) and (b), the department ~~finds the inmate qualifies as a nonviolent offender, it shall establish his or her the inmate’s~~ Nonviolent Parole Eligible Date, as defined in ~~under section 3490, subdivision~~ (f), of this article.~~

~~(f) Eligibility reviews under this section shall be served on the inmate and placed in the inmate’s central file within 15 business days of being completed.~~

~~(g) ~~Any initial e~~ Eligibility reviews ~~determination~~ under this section are ~~is~~ subject to the department’s Inmate Appeal Process in accordance with chapter 1, article 8, of ~~under~~ this division.~~

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Section 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

**Section 3492. Public Safety Screening and Referral. is amended to read:**

~~(a) Effective July 1, 2017, if an inmate is determined to be an eligible for parole consideration nonviolent offender under section 34910, he or she shall be screened under this section for possible referral to the Board of Parole Hearings.~~

~~(b) Inmates shall be screened under this section at least no later than 35 calendar days prior to their inmate's Nonviolent Parole Eligible Date, the inmate shall be screened to determine whether the inmate is currently eligible for referral to the Board of Parole Hearings for Nonviolent Offender Parole Consideration.~~

~~(c) Public Safety Screening and Referral. An inmate is eligible for referral to the Board of Parole Hearings if, on the date of the screening, all of the following are true:~~

~~(1) The inmate is not currently serving a Security Housing Unit term;~~

~~(2) and (1) The Institutional Classification Committee has not assessed the inmate a Security Housing Unit term for any Security Threat Group or disciplinary reason within the past five years, unless the department assessed the Security Housing Unit term solely for the inmate's safety;~~

~~(3) The inmate has not served a Security Housing Unit term in the past five years, unless the department assessed the Security Housing Unit term solely for the inmate's safety;~~

~~(4) The inmate has not been found guilty of a serious Rules Violation Report for a Division A-1 or Division A-2 offense as specified in sections 3323, subdivisions (b) or and 3323(c) within the past five years;~~

~~(5) The inmate has not been assigned to placed in Work Group C as specified in section 3044, subdivision (b), paragraph (54), in the past year;~~

~~(6) The inmate has not been found guilty of two or more serious Rules Violation Reports in the past year;~~

~~(7) The inmate has not been found guilty of a drug-related offense as specified in section 3016 or refused to provide a urine sample as specified in section 3290, subdivision (d), in the past year;~~

~~(8) The inmate has not been found guilty of any Rules Violation Report in which a Security Threat Group nexus was found in the past year; and~~

~~(9) The inmate's Nonviolent Parole Eligible Date falls at least 180 calendar days prior to his or her the inmate's Earliest Possible Release Date and the inmate will not reach his or her Earliest Possible Release Date for at least 210-180 calendar days, and~~

~~(8) The inmate has not subsequently been deemed no longer eligible for the nonviolent offender parole process under sections 3490 or 3491.~~

~~(d) Inmates who are eligible for referral under this section subdivision (b) shall be referred to the Board of Parole Hearings within five business days of being screened for parole consideration under the California Code of Regulations, title 15, division 2, chapter 3, article 15, division 2, of this title.~~

~~(e) If the inmate is not eligible for referral, the Inmates shall be screened again under this section one year from the date of their previous his or her last public safety screening under this section until they are inmate is released from custody or are has been deemed no longer eligible for the nonviolent offender parole consideration process under sections 3490 or 3491, if any of the following apply:~~

~~(1) The inmate was determined to be ineligible for referral under this section;~~

~~(2) The inmate was referred to the Board of Parole Hearings and a hearing officer determined the Board of Parole Hearings did not have jurisdiction to review the inmate for release under section 2449.2 of division 2 of this title;~~

~~(3) The inmate was referred to the Board of Parole Hearings and was denied release after a review on the merits under section 2449.4 of division 2 of this title;~~

~~(4) The inmate was referred to the Board of Parole Hearings and was denied release after a previous decision approving the inmate's release was vacated by the Board of Parole Hearings under section 2449.6 of division 2 of this title; or~~

~~(5) The inmate was referred to the Board of Parole Hearings and was denied release after a previous decision was reviewed by the Board of Parole Hearings under section 2449.7 of division 2 of this title.~~

~~(f) Inmates shall be notified of the r~~Results of the public safety screening and referral eligibility process shall be served on the inmate and placed in the inmate's central file within 15 business days of being completed and, if the inmate is deemed eligible for referral to the Board of Parole Hearings, he or she shall be provided information about the nonviolent offender parole process, including the opportunity to submit a written statement to the ~~to~~Board of Parole Hearings.

~~(g) Any p~~Public safety screenings and ~~or~~ referrals eligibility decision under this section are ~~is~~ subject to the department's Inmate Appeal Process in accordance with chapter 1, article 8, of ~~under~~ this division.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Section 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

**Section 3493. Processing for Release. is amended to read:**

If an inmate is approved for release by the Board of Parole Hearings under section 2449.4 of division 2 of this title ~~nonviolent offender parole~~ and the decision is not vacated or overturned by the Board of Parole Hearings, the Division of Adult Institutions ~~and Division of Adult Parole Operations~~ shall release the inmate 60 calendar days from the date of the Board of Parole Hearings' decision unless the inmate has an additional term to serve for an in-prison offense. Inmates released pursuant to this section shall be released in accordance with ~~Penal Code~~ section 4755 of the Penal Code, ~~and~~ section 3075.2~~r~~ of this title, and any other procedures required by law, including required notifications to victims and law enforcement agencies. ~~Inmates who have an additional term to serve pursuant to Penal Code section 1170.1, subdivision (c) shall begin to serve that term 60 days from the date they are approved for nonviolent offender parole, if the Board of Parole Hearings' decision is not vacated.~~

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Section 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

Amendments to the proposed text originally noticed to the public are indicated by double underline for newly added text and ~~double strikethrough~~ for text deleted from the original proposed text. The single underline and strikethrough formatting from the original proposed text noticed to the public has been retained.

The attached text contains the following changes:

## California Code of Regulations, Title 15, Division 2, Board of Parole Hearings

### Chapter 3. Parole Release.

#### Article 15.

#### Parole Consideration for Determinately-Sentenced Nonviolent Offenders.

##### Section 2449.1. Definitions. is amended to read:

For the purposes of this article, the following definitions shall apply:

(a) An inmate is a “Nonviolent Offender” if none ~~is an inmate who is not any~~ of the following are true:

(1) The inmate is ~~c~~Condemned to death;

(2) The inmate is currently incarcerated for a term of life without the possibility of parole;

(3) The inmate is currently ~~or~~ incarcerated for a term of life with the possibility of parole for a “violent felony;”

(4) The inmate is currently serving a determinate term prior to beginning a term of life with the possibility of parole for a “violent felony” or prior to beginning a term for an in-prison offense that is a “violent felony;”

~~(5)~~ The inmate is currently ~~s~~Serving a term of incarceration for a “violent felony;” or

~~(6)~~ The inmate is currently serving a term of incarceration for a nonviolent felony offense after completing a concurrent determinate term for a “violent felony.”~~Convicted of a sexual offense that requires registration as a sex offender under Penal Code section 290.~~

(b) Notwithstanding subsection (a), a “Nonviolent Offender” includes the following:

~~(1) An inmate who has completed a determinate term of incarceration for a violent felony and is currently serving a concurrent term for a nonviolent felony offense;~~

~~(2) An inmate who has completed a determinate or indeterminate term of incarceration and is currently serving a determinate term for an nonviolent in-prison offense that is not a “violent felony.”~~

(c) “Violent Felony” is a crime or enhancement as defined in ~~Penal Code section 667.5, subdivision (c) of section 667.5 of the Penal Code.~~

(d) “Primary Offense” means the single crime for which any sentencing court imposed the longest term of imprisonment, excluding all enhancements, alternative sentences, and consecutive sentences.

(e) “Full Term” means the actual number of days, months, and years imposed by the sentencing court for the inmate’s primary offense, not including any sentencing credits.

(f) A “Nonviolent Parole Eligible Date” is the date on which ~~an inmate who qualifies as a nonviolent offender who is eligible for parole consideration under section 3491 has served the full term of his or her primary offense, less any actual days served prior to pre-sentence credits applied by the sentencing as ordered by the court for time served under Penal Code section 2900.5 of the Penal Code and any actual days served time spent~~ in custody between sentencing and the date the inmate is received by the department.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b); Section 5058, Penal Code. Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a); 1170.1, subdivision (c), Penal Code; ~~*In re Reeves* (2005) 35 Cal.4th 765; *In re Tate* (2006) 135 Cal.App.4th 756; *In re Thompson* (1985) 172 Cal.App.3d 256.~~

**Section 2449.2. Notification Process.**

~~(a)(1) Within five business days of referral from the department, the board shall notify registered victims and the prosecuting agency or agencies of the inmate's pending nonviolent offender parole consideration and provide an opportunity to submit a written statement.~~

~~(2) Responses to the board must be in writing and postmarked or electronically stamped no later than 30 days after the board issued the notification.~~

~~(b) A registered victim is any person who is registered as a victim with the Office of Victim and Survivor Rights and Services at the time of the referral to the board.~~

~~(c) The prosecuting agency or agencies include any California district attorney office responsible for prosecuting the inmate, or the State of California Office of the Attorney General if that office was responsible for prosecuting the inmate, for any crimes for which the inmate is currently incarcerated.~~

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b). Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

**Section 2449.23. Jurisdictional Review. is amended to read:**

~~(a) Within 15 calendar days of a referral from the department under section 3492 of division 3 of this title ~~Once the 30 day notification response period under section 2449.2 has expired,~~ a hearing officer shall review the inmate's case and ~~to~~ determine whether the board has jurisdiction to review the inmate for release ~~nonviolent offender parole consideration.~~~~

~~(b) Jurisdiction Defined. For the purposes of this article, ~~t~~The board has jurisdiction to review ~~consider~~ an inmate for release if all of the following are true ~~nonviolent offender parole when:~~~~

~~(1) The inmate's Earliest Possible Release Date is at least 210 calendar days after the date of ~~greater than or equal to~~ the department's referral and the inmate's Earliest Possible Release Date is at least ~~date plus~~ 180 calendar days after his or her Nonviolent Parole Eligible Date; ~~and~~~~

~~(2) The ~~board has confirmed the~~ inmate is eligible for ~~nonviolent offender parole~~ consideration under section 3491 of division 3 of this title; ~~Initial Eligibility Determination~~ and~~

~~(3) The inmate, as of the date of the jurisdictional review, meets the criteria for referral to the board under section 3492(c) of ~~Public Safety Screening and Referral in~~ division 3 of this title.~~

~~(c)(1) If the hearing officer determines the board does not have jurisdiction to review ~~consider~~ the inmate for release ~~nonviolent offender parole,~~ he or she ~~the hearing officer~~ shall issue a written decision ~~that~~ includes ~~with~~ a statement of reasons supporting the decision. A copy of the decision shall be served on ~~t~~The inmate and placed in the inmate's central file within 15 business days of being issued, ~~any victims registered at the time of the referral, and the prosecuting agency that received notice under section 2449.2 shall be notified of the decision.~~ Inmates determined to be ineligible for referral to the board under this section shall be screened for possible referral to the board again as provided in section 3492(e) of division 3 of this title.~~

~~(d2) If the hearing officer determines the board has jurisdiction to review ~~consider~~ the inmate for release ~~nonviolent offender parole,~~ the board ~~hearing officer~~ shall proceed with the notification process outlined in ~~conduct a review on the merits under~~ section 2449.34 of this article.~~

~~(e) Inmates may seek review of decisions issued under this section by writing the board in accordance with section 2449.7 within 30 calendar days of being served the decision. Decisions issued ~~Board Jurisdiction determinations~~ under this section are not subject to the department's Inmate Appeal Process under division 3, chapter 1, article 8, division 3, of this title, ~~but are eligible for review under section 2449.5 of this article.~~~~

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b). Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

**Section 2449.3. Notification Process. is adopted to read:**

~~(a) Within five business days of a hearing officer determining the board has jurisdiction to review an inmate for release under section 2449.2, the board shall notify registered victims and the prosecuting~~

agency or agencies of the inmate's pending parole review and provide an opportunity to submit a written statement.

(b) Responses to the board under this section must be in writing and postmarked or electronically stamped no later than 30 calendar days after the board issued the notification.

(c) A registered victim is any person who is registered as a victim with the department's Office of Victim and Survivor Rights and Services at the time of the inmate's referral to the board under section 3492 of division 2 of this title.

(d) The prosecuting agency or agencies include any California district attorney office responsible for prosecuting the inmate, or the State of California Office of the Attorney General if that office was responsible for prosecuting the inmate, for any crimes for which the inmate is currently incarcerated.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b). Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

**Section 2449.4. Review on the Merits, is amended to read:**

(a) Within 30 calendar days of the conclusion of the notification process described under section 2449.3(b), a hearing officer shall review the inmate's case on the merits and determine whether to approve his or her release. ~~Upon determination that the board has jurisdiction, a hearing officer shall complete a nonviolent offender parole consideration review on the merits.~~

(b) ~~Information considered.~~ The hearing officer shall review and consider all relevant and reliable information about the inmate including, but not limited to:

(1) Information contained in the inmate's central file and the inmate's documented criminal history, including the inmate's ~~current~~ Record of Arrests and Prosecutions (RAP sheets) and any return to prison with a new conviction after being released as a result of this section; and

(2) Written statements submitted by the inmate, any victims registered at the time of the referral, and the prosecuting agency or agencies that received notice under section 2449.3~~2~~.

(c) ~~Standard of Review.~~ After reviewing and considering the relevant and reliable information, the hearing officer shall determine whether the inmate poses ~~an~~ current, unreasonable risk of violence ~~to the community~~ or a current, unreasonable risk of significant criminal activity as determined by considering and applying the factors in section 2449.5. ~~In reaching this determination, the hearing officer shall consider the totality of the circumstances, including the following four factors:~~

~~(1) The circumstances surrounding the current conviction;~~

~~(2) The inmate's prior criminal record;~~

~~(3) The inmate's institutional behavior including both rehabilitative programming and institutional misconduct; and~~

~~(4) Any input from the inmate, any victims registered at the time of the referral, and the prosecuting agency or agencies that received notice under section 2449.2.~~

(d) ~~Nonviolent Offender Parole Determinations.~~ The hearing officer shall issue a written decision that includes a statement of reasons supporting the decision. A copy of the decision shall be served on the inmate and placed in the inmate's central file within 15 business days of being issued. The board shall, within five business days of issuing a decision, send notice of the decision to any victim who was registered at the time of the referral and any prosecuting agency or agencies that received notice under section 2449.3.

(1) If the hearing officer finds the inmate poses ~~an~~ current, unreasonable risk of violence or a current, unreasonable risk of significant criminal activity, the hearing officer shall deny ~~parole~~ release and issue his or her decision.

(2) If the hearing officer finds the inmate does not pose ~~an~~ current, unreasonable risk of violence or a current, unreasonable risk of significant criminal activity, the hearing officer shall approve ~~parole~~ release and issue his or her decision unless the decision will result in the inmate being released two or more years prior to his or her Earliest Possible Release Date.

~~(3) The hearing officer shall document his or her decision in writing with a statement of reasons. The inmate, any victims registered at the time of the referral, and the prosecuting agency that received notice under section 2449.2 shall be notified.~~

~~(4) If the decision will result in the inmate being released two or more years prior to his or her Earliest Possible Release Date, the decision shall be reviewed by ~~require a second signature from an A~~ associate ~~C~~ chief ~~D~~ deputy ~~E~~ commissioner or the ~~board's~~ Chief Hearing Officer before it is finalized and issued. If the associate chief deputy commissioner or the Chief Hearing Officer does not concur with the hearing officer's decision, he or she shall issue a new decision approving or denying release.~~

~~(e) Inmates approved for release under this section shall be processed for release by the department as described in section 3493 of division 3 of this title.~~

~~(f) Inmates denied release under this section shall be screened for possible referral to the board again as provided in section 3492(e) of division 3 of this title.~~

~~(ge) Inmates may seek review of decisions issued under this section by writing the board in accordance with section 2449.7 within 30 calendar days of being served the decision. Decisions issued ~~Nonviolent offender parole determinations~~ under this section are not subject to the department's Inmate Appeal Process under ~~division 3, chapter 1, article 8, division 3,~~ of this title; ~~however, an inmate may request review of the decision under section 2449.5 of this article.~~~~

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b). Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

**Section 2449.5. Factors to Consider During a Review on the Merits, is adopted to read:**

(a) When conducting a review on the merits under section 2449.4, the hearing officer shall weigh the factors in subsections (b) through (h) and, based on the totality of the circumstances, determine if the inmate poses a current, unreasonable risk of violence or a current, unreasonable risk of significant criminal activity. The inmate shall be approved for release if factors aggravating the inmate's risk do not exist or if they are outweighed by factors mitigating the inmate's risk. When weighing the factors aggravating and mitigating the inmate's risk, the hearing officer shall take into account the relevance of the information based on the passage of time, the inmate's age, and the inmate's physical and cognitive limitations. The factors are set forth as general guidelines; the importance attached to any factor or combination of factors in a particular case is left to the judgment of the hearing officer.

(b) The following factors concerning the inmate's current conviction(s), if present, shall be considered as aggravating the inmate's risk.

(1) The inmate personally used a deadly weapon.

(2) There were one or more victims who suffered physical injury or threat of physical injury.

(3) There were multiple convictions involving large-scale criminal activity.

(4) The inmate played a significant role in the crime(s) as compared to other offenders, if any.

(c) The following factors concerning the inmate's current conviction(s), if present, shall be considered as mitigating the inmate's risk.

(1) The inmate did not personally use a deadly weapon.

(2) No victims suffered physical injury or threat of physical injury.

(3) There was only one conviction.

(4) The inmate played an insignificant role in the crime(s) as compared to other offenders, if any.

(d) The following factors concerning the inmate's prior criminal conviction(s), if any, shall be considered as aggravating the inmate's risk.

(1) The inmate has a violent felony conviction as defined in subdivision (c) of section 667.5 of the Penal Code in the past 15 years.

(2) The inmate's prior criminal conviction(s) coupled with his or her current conviction(s) show a pattern of assaultive behavior or a pattern of similar criminal conduct that is increasing in severity.

(3) The inmate was incarcerated for a misdemeanor conviction involving physical injury to a victim or a felony conviction within five years prior to his or her current conviction(s).

(4) The inmate was previously approved for release by the board under this article and returned to state prison with a new conviction.

(e) The following factors concerning the inmate's prior criminal behavior, if present, shall be considered as mitigating the inmate's risk.

(1) The inmate has no prior criminal convictions.

(2) The inmate has not been convicted of a violent felony as defined in subdivision (c) of section 667.5 of the Penal Code in the past 15 years.

(3) The inmate's prior criminal conviction(s) coupled with his or her current conviction(s) shows a pattern of assaultive behavior or a pattern of similar criminal conduct that is decreasing in severity.

(4) The inmate was free from incarceration for a misdemeanor conviction involving physical injury to a victim or a felony conviction for five years or more prior to his or her current conviction(s).

(f) The following factors concerning the inmate's institutional behavior, work history, and rehabilitative programming as documented in the inmate's central file shall be considered as aggravating the inmate's risk.

(1) The inmate has been found guilty of institutional Rules Violations Reports resulting in physical injury or threat of physical injury since his or her last admission to prison.

(2) There is reliable information in the confidential section of the inmate's central file indicating the inmate has engaged in criminal activity since his or her last admission to prison.

(3) The inmate has limited or no participation in available vocational, educational, or work assignments.

(4) The inmate has limited or no participation in available rehabilitative or self-help programming to address the circumstances that contributed to his or her criminal behavior, such as substance abuse, domestic violence, or gang involvement.

(g) The following factors concerning the inmate's institutional behavior, work history, and rehabilitative programming as documented in the inmate's central file shall be considered as mitigating the inmate's risk.

(1) The inmate has not been found guilty of institutional Rules Violations Reports resulting in physical injury or threat of physical injury since his or her last admission to prison.

(2) There is no reliable information in the confidential section of the inmate's central file indicating the inmate has engaged in criminal activity since his or her last admission to prison.

(3) The inmate has successfully participated in vocational, educational, or work assignments for a sustained period of time.

(4) The inmate has successfully participated in rehabilitative or self-help programming to address the circumstances that contributed to his or her criminal behavior, such as substance abuse, domestic violence, or gang involvement, if any, for a sustained period of time.

(h) Written statements submitted by the inmate, written statements concerning the inmate's commitment offense and criminal history from the prosecuting agency or agencies that received notice under section 2449.3, and written statements from any victims who received notice under section 2449.3 shall be considered.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b). Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

**Section 2449.6. Vacating a Decision, is adopted to read:**

(a) If at any time prior to release an inmate previously approved for release under section 2449.4 is subsequently determined to no longer be eligible for parole consideration under section 3491 of division 3 of this title or to no longer meet the criteria for referral to the board under section 3492(c) of division 3 of this title, then the Chief Hearing Officer or an associate chief deputy commissioner shall issue a written decision vacating the previous decision that includes a statement of reasons supporting the new decision.

(b) Within 15 business days of issuing a decision under subsection (a), a copy of the decision shall be served on the inmate and placed in the inmate's central file. The board shall, within five business days of issuing a decision under subsection (a), send notice of the decision to any victim who was registered at the time of the referral and any prosecuting agency or agencies that received notice under section 2449.3.

(c) If a decision is vacated under this section, the inmate shall be screened again for possible referral to the board as provided in section 3492(e) of division 3 of this title.

(d) Inmates may request review of a decision issued under this section by writing the board as provided in section 2449.7 within 30 calendar days of being served the decision. Decisions under this section are not subject to the department's Inmate Appeal Process under chapter 1, article 8, division 3, of this title.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b). Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

**Section 2449.75. Decision Review, is amended to read:**

(a) ~~Within 30 days of the date of a final decision concerning jurisdiction or a review on the merits, the inmate may request review of the decision.~~ An inmate may request review of a jurisdictional decision issued under section 2449.2, a decision on the merits issued under section 2449.4, or a decision vacating a previous approval for release issued under section 2449.6 by submitting a written request to the board within 30 calendar days of the inmate being served the decision. The inmate's written request shall include a description of why the inmate believes the previous decision was not correct and may include additional information not available to the hearing officer at the time the previous decision was issued.

(b) The Chief Hearing Officer or an associate chief deputy commissioner may also initiate a review under this section at any time prior to the inmate's release if the previous decision contained an error of law, an error of fact, or if the board receives new information that would have materially impacted the previous decision had it been known at the time the decision was issued.

~~(c) Timing.~~ A hearing officer, associate chief deputy commissioner, or the ~~board's~~ Chief Hearing Officer, who was not involved in the original decision, shall complete a review of the decision within 30 calendar days of the board receiving receipt of the request.

~~(d)(1) The reviewing hearing officer, associate chief deputy commissioner, or the Chief Hearing Officer reviewing the previous decision shall review and consider all relevant and reliable information and issue about the inmate and shall document his or her decision in writing, either concurring with the original decision either concurring with the previous decision or overturning/vacating the previous original decision and issuing a new written decision with a statement of reasons supporting the new decision.~~

(2) The inmate, any victims registered at the time of the referral, and the prosecuting agency that received notice under section 2449.2 shall be notified.

~~(d)(1) If, following parole approval, the inmate becomes ineligible under section 3491 Initial Eligibility Determination or section 3492 Public Safety Screening and Referral in division 3 of this title, the board shall vacate the decision approving parole in writing with a statement of reasons.~~

(2) The inmate, any victims registered at the time of the referral, and the prosecuting agency that received notice under section 2449.2 shall be notified.

(e) A copy of the decision shall be served on the inmate and placed in the inmate's central file within 15 business days of being issued.

(f) Within five business days of issuing a decision under this section that overturns a previous decision issued under sections 2449.4 or 2449.6, the board shall send notice of the decision to any victim who was registered at the time of the referral and any prosecuting agency or agencies that received notice under section 2449.3. Inmates who are denied release under this section shall be screened for possible referral to the board again as provided in section 3492(e) of division 3 of this title.

(g) If a decision under this section overturns a previous decision that determined the board did not have jurisdiction to review the inmate because he or she was not eligible for referral under section 2449.2, the board shall proceed with the notification process outlined in section 2449.3. The board shall also, within 60 calendar days, conduct a review on the merits under section 2449.4.

(h) Decisions under this section are not subject to the department's Inmate Appeal Process under chapter 1, article 8, division 3, of this title.

Note: Authority cited: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(b). Reference: Cal. Const., art. 1, sec. 32(a).

## MILESTONE COMPLETION CREDIT SCHEDULE

No milestone completion credits shall be awarded for incomplete performance milestones under any circumstances.

<b>Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes</b>			
<b>Auto Body</b>			
<u>COURSE</u>	<u>COURSE DESCRIPTION</u>	<u>COURSE CODE</u>	<u>COURSE VALUE</u>
Auto Body	Detailing/Painting/ Refinishing	V01L100	2 weeks
Auto Body	Non-Structural Damage	V01L200	3 weeks
Auto Body	Structural Damage	V01L300	2 weeks
Auto Body	Mechanical and Electrical	V01L400	3 weeks
Auto Body	Auto Body Basics	V01L401	6 weeks
Auto Body	Auto Body Level 1	V01L402	4 weeks
Auto Body	Auto Body Level 2	V01L403	4 weeks
Auto Body	Auto Body Level 3	V01L404	5 weeks
Auto Body	Auto Body Level 4	V01L405	3 weeks
Auto Body (ASE)	ASE – Non-Structural Analysis and Repair	V01L406	2 weeks
Auto Body (ASE)	ASE – Painting and Refinishing	V01L407	2 weeks
Auto Body (ASE)	ASE – Structural Analysis and Repair	V01L408	2 weeks
Auto Body (ASE)	ASE – Mechanical and Electrical Analysis and Repair	V01L409	2 weeks
Auto Body (I-CAR)	I-CAR – Non-Structural Technician – ProLevel 1	V01L410	2 weeks
Auto Body (I-CAR)	I-CAR – Non-Structural Technician – ProLevel 2	V01L411	2 weeks
Auto Body (I-CAR)	I-CAR – Non-Structural Technician – ProLevel 3	V01L412	2 weeks
Auto Body (I-CAR)	I-CAR – Steel Structural Technician – ProLevel 1	V01L413	2 weeks
Auto Body (I-CAR)	I-CAR – Steel Structural Technician – ProLevel 2	V01L414	2 weeks
Auto Body (I-CAR)	I-CAR – Steel Structural Technician – ProLevel 3	V01L415	2 weeks
Auto Body (I-CAR)	I-CAR – Refinish Technician – ProLevel 1	V01L416	2 weeks
Auto Body (I-CAR)	I-CAR – Refinish Technician – ProLevel 2	V01L417	2 weeks
Auto Body (I-CAR)	I-CAR – Refinish Technician – ProLevel 3	V01L418	2 weeks
<b>Auto Mechanics</b>			
Auto Mechanics	Basic Auto	V02L100 <del>1</del>	2 7 weeks
Auto Mechanics	Engine Service Repair	V02L200 <del>1</del>	2 4 weeks
Auto Mechanics	Auto Trans and Transaxles	V02L300 <del>1</del>	2 4 weeks
Auto Mechanics	Man. Trans and Transaxles	V02L400 <del>1</del>	2 4 weeks
Auto Mechanics	Suspension and Steering	V02L500 <del>1</del>	3 4 weeks
Auto Mechanics	Brake Installation	V02L600 <del>1</del>	2 5 weeks
Auto Mechanics	Electrical Systems	V02L700 <del>1</del>	2 4 weeks
Auto Mechanics	Heating and A/C	V02L800 <del>1</del>	2 4 weeks
Auto Mechanics	Engine Performance	V02L900 <del>10</del>	3 5 weeks
Auto Mechanics (ASE)	ASE Maintenance and Light Repair	V02L901	2 weeks
Auto Mechanics (ASE)	ASE Auto Engine Repair	V02L902	2 weeks
Auto Mechanics (ASE)	ASE Auto Brakes	V02L903	2 weeks
Auto Mechanics (ASE)	ASE Auto Steering and Suspension	V02L904	2 weeks
Auto Mechanics (ASE)	ASE Auto HVAC	V02L905	2 weeks
Auto Mechanics (ASE)	ASE Auto Electrical and Electronics	V02L906	2 weeks
Auto Mechanics (ASE)	ASE Engine Performance and Drivability	V02L907	2 weeks
<b>Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)</b>			
<b>Auto Body</b>			
Auto Mechanics (ASE)	ASE Manual Drive Trans and Axles	V02L908	2 weeks
Auto Mechanics (ASE)	ASE Auto Drive Trans and Axles	V02L909	2 weeks
<b>Nail Care (400 hrs)</b>			
Manicuring	Manicuring	V03L100 <del>1</del>	2 4 weeks
Manicuring	License Award	V03L200 <del>1</del>	3 5 weeks

## Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

### Cosmetology (1600 hrs)

Cosmetology	Health and Safety/State Cosmetology Act/Anatomy	V03L300 <u>1</u>	4 <u>3</u> weeks
Cosmetology	Hair Styling	V03L400 <u>1</u>	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Cosmetology	Hair Treatments/Coloring/P-Wave/Relaxing	V03L500 <u>1</u>	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Cosmetology	Manicuring/Skin Care	V03L600 <u>1</u>	4 <u>3</u> weeks
Cosmetology	License Award	V03L700 <u>1</u>	3 <u>5</u> weeks

### Career Core

Career Core	Career Core Basics	V1300L100	4 weeks
Career Core	Job Readiness	V1300L200	4 weeks
Career Core	OSHA	V1300L300	2 weeks
Career Core	EPA	V1300L400	2 weeks
Career Core	Forklift Certification – Industrial	V1300L500	2 weeks
Career Core	Forklift Certification – Construction	V1300L600	3 weeks

### Electronics

Electronics	Core	V0400C0	1 week
Electronics	Level I	V0400L101	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Electronics	Level II	V0400L201	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Electronics	Level III	V0400L300	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Electronics	Level IV	V0400L400	2 <u>5</u> weeks
Electronics – NCCER	NCCER Electronics – Level 1	V0400L5	2 weeks
Electronics – NCCER	NCCER Electronics – Level 2	V0400L6	2 weeks
Electronics – NCCER	NCCER Electronics – Level 3	V0400L7	2 weeks
Electronics – NCCER	NCCER Electronics – Level 4	V0400L8	2 weeks

### Machine Shop

Machine Shop	Quality Control	V050100	1 week
Machine Shop	Material Cutting	V050200	1 week
Machine Shop	Drill Press Operator	V050300	1 week
Machine Shop	Lathe Operator	V050400	1 week
Machine Shop	Milling Machine Operator	V050500	1 week
Machine Shop	Tool Grinder Operator	V050600	1 week
Machine Shop	CNC Mill & Lathe Operator	V050700	1 week

### Manufacturing Engineering and Design Practices ( Machine Shop)

CNC Machine Shop	Basic Engineering, Design and CNC Programming	V150100	4 weeks
CNC Machine Shop	Engineering, Design and CNC Programming – Level I	V150200	4 weeks
CNC Machine Shop	Engineering, Design and CNC Programming- Level II	V150300	4 weeks
CNC Machine Shop	Engineering, Design and CNC Programming- Level III	V150400	4 weeks
CNC Machine Shop	Engineering, Design and CNC Programming- Level IV	V150500	4 weeks
CNC Machine Shop	Engineering, Design and CNC Programming- Level V	V150600	4 weeks
CNC Machine Shop - TCNC	Basic Engineering, Design and CNC Programming- Level I	V150700	2 weeks
CNC Machine Shop - TCNC	Engineering, Design and CNC Programming- Level II	V150800	2 weeks
CNC Machine Shop - TCNC	Engineering, Design and CNC Programming- Level III	V150900	2 weeks

## Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

### Manufacturing Engineering and Design Practices ( Machine Shop) (continued)

CNC Machine Shop - TCNC	<u>Engineering, Design and CNC Programming- Level IV</u>	V151000	2 weeks
CNC Machine Shop - TCNC	<u>Engineering, Design and CNC Programming- Level V</u>	V152000	2 weeks
<b>Office Services and Related Technology</b>			
OSRT	Microsoft Level 1	V0601042	4 4 weeks
OSRT	Microsoft Level 2	V0602001	2 4 weeks
OSRT	Microsoft Level 3	V0603001	2 4 weeks
OSRT - MS	Microsoft STRAND 1	V0604001	4 weeks
OSRT - MS	Microsoft STRAND 2	V0605001	4 weeks
OSRT - MS	Microsoft STRAND 3	V0606001	4 weeks
OSRT - MS	Microsoft STRAND 4	V060700	4 weeks
OSRT - MS	Microsoft STRAND 5	V060800	4 weeks
OSRT - MS	Microsoft STRAND 6	V060900	4 weeks
<b>Small Engine Repair</b>			
Small Engine Repair	Small Engine Basics	V07L001	4 weeks
Small Engine Repair	Equipment Operation & Service Electrical	V07L1001	2 4 weeks
Small Engine Repair	4 Cycle	V07L2001	3 4 weeks
Small Engine Repair	2 Cycle	V07L3001	2 4 weeks
Small Engine Repair	Diesel	V07L4001	2 4 weeks
Small Engine Repair - EETC	EETC – Two Stroke	V07L500	2 weeks
Small Engine Repair - EETC	EETC – Four Stroke	V07L600	2 weeks
Small Engine Repair - EETC	EETC – Electrical	V07L700	2 weeks
Small Engine Repair - EETC	EETC – Drive Line	V07L800	2 weeks
Small Engine Repair - EETC	EETC – Compact Diesel	V07L900	2 weeks
Small Engine Repair - EETC	EETC – Generator	V07L901	2 weeks
Small Engine Repair - EETC	EETC – Reel Tech	V07L902	2 weeks
<b>Carpentry</b>			
Carpentry	Core	V0801C0	1 week
Carpentry	Level I	V0804L100	2 5 weeks
Carpentry	Level II	V0804L200	2 6 weeks
Carpentry	Level III	V0804L300	2 4 weeks
Carpentry	Level IV	V0804L400	2 5 weeks
Carpentry - NCCER	NCCER Construction – Level 1	V0801L5	2 weeks
Carpentry - NCCER	NCCER Construction – Level 2	V0801L6	2 weeks
Carpentry - NCCER	NCCER Construction – Level 3	V0801L7	2 weeks
Carpentry - NCCER	NCCER Construction – Level 4	V0801L8	2 weeks
<b>Building Maintenance</b>			
Building Maintenance	Core	V0906C0	1 week
Building Maintenance	Level I	V0906L100	2 4 weeks
Building Maintenance	Level II	V0906L200	2 6 weeks
Building Maintenance	Level III	V0906L300	2 4 weeks
Building Maintenance	Level IV	V0906L400	2 5 weeks
Building Maintenance - NCCER	NCCER Building Maintenance – Level 1	V0906L5	2 weeks
Building Maintenance - NCCER	NCCER Building Maintenance – Level 2	V0906L6	2 weeks
Building Maintenance - NCCER	NCCER Building Maintenance – Level 3	V0906L7	2 weeks
Building Maintenance - NCCER	NCCER Building Maintenance – Level 4	V0906L8	2 weeks
Building Maintenance - NCCER	NCCER Weatherization Tech	V0906L9	2 weeks

## Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

Electrical			
Electrical	Core	V1005C0	1 week
Electrical	Level I	V1005L100	2 6 weeks
Electrical	Level II	V1005L200	2 4 weeks
Electrical	Level III	V1005L300	2 4 weeks
Electrical	Level IV	V1005L400	2 4 weeks
Electrical - NCCER	NCCER Electrical – Level 1	V1005L5	2 weeks
Electrical - NCCER	NCCER Electrical – Level 2	V1005L6	2 weeks
Electrical - NCCER	NCCER Electrical – Level 3	V1005L7	2 weeks
Electrical - NCCER	NCCER Electrical – Level 4	V1005L8	2 weeks
HVAC			
HVAC	Core	V1107C0	1 week
HVAC	Level I	V1107L100	2 4 weeks
HVAC	Level II	V1107L200	2 6 weeks
HVAC	Level III	V1107L300	2 4 weeks
HVAC	Level IV	V1107L400	2 4 weeks
HVAC - NCCER	NCCER HVAC – Level 1	V1107L5	2 weeks
HVAC - NCCER	NCCER HVAC – Level 2	V1107L6	2 weeks
HVAC - NCCER	NCCER HVAC – Level 3	V1107L7	2 weeks
HVAC - NCCER	NCCER HVAC – Level 4	V1107L8	2 weeks
HVAC - NCCER	NCCER Weatherization Tech	V1107L9	2 weeks
Masonry			
Masonry	Core	V1202C0	1 week
Masonry	Level I	V1202L100	2 4 weeks
Masonry	Level II	V1202L200	2 5 weeks
Masonry	Level III	V1202L300	2 5 weeks
Masonry	Level IV	V1202L400	2 4 weeks
Masonry - NCCER	NCCER Masonry – Level 1	V1202L5	2 weeks
Masonry - NCCER	NCCER Masonry – Level 2	V1202L6	2 weeks
Masonry - NCCER	NCCER Masonry – Level 3	V1202L7	2 weeks
Masonry - NCCER	NCCER Masonry – Level 4	V1202L8	2 weeks
Plumbing			
Plumbing	Core	V1304C0	1 week
Plumbing	Level I	V1304L500	2 6 weeks
Plumbing	Level II	V1304L600	2 5 weeks
Plumbing	Level III	V1304L700	2 5 weeks
Plumbing	Level IV	V1304L800	2 5 weeks
Plumbing - NCCER	NCCER Plumbing – Level 1	V1304L9	2 weeks
Plumbing - NCCER	NCCER Plumbing – Level 2	V130410	2 weeks
Plumbing - NCCER	NCCER Plumbing – Level 3	V130411	2 weeks
Plumbing - NCCER	NCCER Plumbing – Level 4	V130412	2 weeks
Sheet Metal			
Sheet Metal	Core	V1402C0	1 week
Sheet Metal	Level I	V1402L100	2 4 weeks
Sheet Metal	Level II	V1402L200	2 4 weeks
Sheet Metal	Level III	V1402L300	2 5 weeks
Sheet Metal	Level IV	V1402L400	2 4 weeks
Sheet Metal – NCCER	NCCER Sheet Metal – Level 1	V1402L5	2 weeks
Sheet Metal – NCCER	NCCER Sheet Metal – Level 2	V1402L6	2 weeks
Sheet Metal – NCCER	NCCER Sheet Metal – Level 3	V1402L7	2 weeks
Sheet Metal – NCCER	NCCER Sheet Metal – Level 4	V1402L8	2 weeks

## Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

Welding			
Welding	Core	V1503C0	1 week
Welding	Level I	V1503L100	2 7 weeks
Welding	Level II	V1503L200	2 4 weeks
Welding	Level III	V1503L300	2 8 weeks
Welding	Level IV	V1503L400	2 4 weeks
Welding - NCCER	NCCER Welding – Level 1	V1503L5	2 weeks
Welding - NCCER	NCCER Welding – Level 2	V1503L6	2 weeks
Welding - NCCER	NCCER Welding – Level 3	V1503L7	2 weeks
Welding - NCCER	NCCER Welding – Level 4	V1503L8	2 weeks
Welding – AWS	AWS - MIG	V1503L9	2 weeks
Welding – AWS	AWS - Flux Core	V151310	2 weeks
Welding – AWS	AWS - Stick	V151311	2 weeks
Welding – AWS	AWS - Pipe	V151312	2 weeks
Welding – AWS	AWS - Aluminum	V151313	2 weeks
Welding – AWS	AWS - Stainless	V151314	2 weeks
Computer Literacy			
Computer Literacy	Core	V1601001	4 4 weeks
Computer Literacy - MS	Digital Literacy	V160200	3 weeks
Industrial Painting			
Industrial Painting	Core	V1703C0	1 week
Industrial Painting	Level I	V1703L100	2 4 weeks
Industrial Painting	Level II	V1703L200	2 4 weeks
Industrial Painting	Level III	V1703L300	2 4 weeks
Industrial Painting	Level IV	V1703L400	2 4 weeks
Painting - NCCER	NCCER Painting – Level 1	V1703L5	2 weeks
Painting - NCCER	NCCER Painting – Level 2	V1703L6	2 weeks
Painting - NCCER	NCCER Painting – Level 3	V1703L7	2 weeks
Painting - NCCER	NCCER Painting – Level 4	V1703L8	2 weeks
Roofing			
Roofing	Core	V1903C0	1 week
Roofing	Level I	V1903L100	2 3 weeks
Roofing	Level II	V1903L200	2 5 weeks
Roofing	Level III	V1903L300	2 5 weeks
Roofing	Level IV	V1903L4	2 weeks
Roofing - NCCER	NCCER Roofing – Level 1	V1903L5	2 weeks
Roofing - NCCER	NCCER Roofing – Level 2	V1903L6	2 weeks
Roofing - NCCER	NCCER Roofing – Level 3	V1903L7	2 weeks
Roofing - NCCER	NCCER Roofing – Level 4	V1903L8	2 weeks

## Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

<b>Drywall</b>			
Drywall	Core	V2003C0	1 week
Drywall	Level I	V2003L100	2 4 weeks
Drywall	Level II	V2003L200	2 4 weeks
Drywall	Level III	V2003L300	2 4 weeks
Drywall	Level IV	V2003L400	2 4 weeks
<u>Drywall - NCCER</u>	<u>NCCER Drywall – Level 1</u>	<u>V2003L5</u>	<u>2 weeks</u>
<u>Drywall - NCCER</u>	<u>NCCER Drywall – Level 2</u>	<u>V2003L6</u>	<u>2 weeks</u>
<u>Drywall - NCCER</u>	<u>NCCER Drywall – Level 3</u>	<u>V2003L7</u>	<u>2 weeks</u>
<u>Drywall - NCCER</u>	<u>NCCER Drywall – Level 4</u>	<u>V2003L8</u>	<u>2 weeks</u>
<b>Sustainable Ecological Environmental Design (SEED)</b>			
<u>SEED</u>	<u>SEED – Level I</u>	<u>V2101L1</u>	<u>4 weeks</u>
<u>SEED</u>	<u>SEED – Level II</u>	<u>V2101L2</u>	<u>4 weeks</u>
<u>SEED</u>	<u>SEED – Level III</u>	<u>V2101L3</u>	<u>4 weeks</u>
<u>SEED</u>	<u>SEED – Level IV</u>	<u>V2101L4</u>	<u>4 weeks</u>
<u>SEED</u>	<u>SEED – Level V</u>	<u>V2101L5</u>	<u>4 weeks</u>
<u>SEED - UCD</u>	<u>SEED UCD – Level 1</u>	<u>V2101L6</u>	<u>2 weeks</u>
<u>SEED - UCD</u>	<u>SEED UCD – Level 2</u>	<u>V2101L7</u>	<u>2 weeks</u>
<u>SEED - UCD</u>	<u>SEED UCD – Level 3</u>	<u>V2101L8</u>	<u>2 weeks</u>
<u>SEED - UCD</u>	<u>SEED UCD – Level 4</u>	<u>V2101L9</u>	<u>2 weeks</u>
<u>SEED - UCD</u>	<u>SEED UCD – Level 5</u>	<u>V210110</u>	<u>2 weeks</u>

## Academic Milestone Descriptions and Codes

ABE I			
ABE I	0.0 - 1.9 grade point level	A01010 <u>0</u> 1	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE I	2.0 - 2.9 grade point level	A01020 <u>0</u> 1	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE I	3.0 - 3.9 grade point level	A01030 <u>0</u> 1	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE II			
ABE II	4.0 - 4.9 grade point level	A02040 <u>0</u> 1	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE II	5.0 - 5.9 grade point level	A02050 <u>0</u> 1	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE II	6.0 - 6.9 grade point level	A02060 <u>0</u> 1	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE III			
ABE III	7.0 - 7.9 grade point level	A03070 <u>0</u> 1	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE III	8.0 - 8.9 grade point level	A03080 <u>0</u> 1	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE III	9.0 - 9.9 grade point level	A03090 <u>0</u> 1	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
-High School Equivalency			
HSE	<del>Language Arts, Reading and Writing subtest (Electronic GED only)</del>	<del>G010101</del>	<del>2</del> <del>4</del> weeks
HSE	<del>Language Arts Reading Subtest (Paper based only - HiSET or TASC) Cannot be issued in conjunction with G010101</del>	<del>G010102</del>	<del>3</del> weeks
HSE	<del>Writing Subtest (Paper based only - HiSET or TASC) Cannot be issued in conjunction with G010101</del>	<del>G010103</del>	<del>3</del> weeks
HSE	Social Studies subtest	G010200	1 <del>3</del> weeks
HSE	Mathematics subtest	G010300	1 <del>3</del> weeks
HSE	Science subtest	G010400	1 <del>3</del> weeks
HSE	HSE Completion	G020100	1 week
High School			
HS	English 1 <sup>st</sup> course	H01010 <u>0</u> 1	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	English 2 <sup>nd</sup> course	H01011 <u>0</u> 1	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	English 3 <sup>rd</sup> course	H01012 <u>0</u> 1	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	Mathematics	H01030 <u>0</u> 1	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	Algebra I	H01021 <u>0</u> 1	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	General/er-Life Science	H01040 <u>4</u> 3	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	Earth /er Physical Science	H01040 <u>2</u> 4	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	U.S. History or Geography	H01050 <u>4</u> 3	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	World History or Geography/Culture	H01050 <u>2</u> 4	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	American Government and Economics	H01060 <u>0</u> 1	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	Visual and Performing Arts /Fine Arts	H01080 <u>0</u> 1	4 <u>4</u> weeks
HS	Health	H010900	1 week
HS	Job/Career Exploration	H011000	1 week
HS	Elective completed	H011420 <u>4</u> 20	4 <u>4</u> weeks <b>*R1</b>
HS	High School Diploma Awarded	H011300	1 week
College			
College	Each 3 Semester or 4-5 Quarter units completed	C01010 <u>1</u> 0	4 <u>2</u> weeks <b>*R1</b>
Literacy			
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 1	L010101	2 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 2	L010102	2 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 3	L010103	2 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 4	L010104	2 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 5	L010105	2 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 6	L010106	2 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 7	L0104 <u>B</u> 07	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 8	L0101 <u>B</u> 08	<u>2</u> <u>4</u> weeks

**\*R1 = Repeatable during same or new term for different classes/degrees**

## Academic Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 9	L0104B09	2 <del>4</del> weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 10	L0101B10	2 <del>4</del> weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 11	L0101B11	2 <del>4</del> weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 12	L010112	2 weeks
<b>Math</b>			
Math	CASAS Benchmark 1	M010101	2 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 2	M010102	2 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 3	M010103	2 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 4	M010104	2 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 5	M010105	2 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 6	M010106	2 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 7	M0104B07	2 <del>4</del> weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 8	M0104B08	2 <del>4</del> weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 9	M0104B09	2 <del>4</del> weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 10	M0104B10	2 <del>4</del> weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 11	M0104B11	2 <del>4</del> weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 12	M010112	2 weeks
<b>Substance Abuse Program</b>			
SAP	3 month Course Completion	S010300	2 weeks
SAP	5 month Course Completion	S010500	6 weeks
SAP	6 month Course Completion	S010600	6 weeks
<b>Core Programs</b>			
Criminal Thinking	Thinking for Change (T4C) Course Completion	T4C0100	1 week
Anger Management	Controlling Anger – Learning to Live with It (CALM) or Aggression Replacement Training (ART) Course Completion	CLM0100	1 week
<b>Mental Health</b>			
EOP group module treatment	EOP Benchmark 1	E010100	2 weeks
EOP group module treatment	EOP Benchmark 2	E010200	2 weeks
EOP group module treatment	EOP Benchmark 3	E010300	2 weeks
EOP group module treatment	EOP Benchmark 4	E010400	2 weeks
Reception Center EOP group module treatment	RC EOP Benchmark 1	E010500	1 week
Reception Center EOP group module treatment	RC EOP Benchmark 2	E010600	1 week
EOP Mental Health Treatment Plan	Each <b>60 Hours</b> of treatment plan activities completed	MH10100	1 week <b>*R2</b>
In-Patient Mental Health Treatment Plan	Each <b>60 Hours</b> of treatment plan activities completed	MH10200	1 week <b>*R2</b>
DDP Group Assignments	Each <b>60 Hours</b> of group assignments completed	MH10300	1 week <b>*R2</b>
EOP Core	Aggression Replacement Training	MH10400	1 week
EOP Core	Thinking For Change	MH10500	1 week
EOP Core	Illness Management and Recovery	MH10600	1 week
FOPS-Community Beds	Wrap Around Services Course Completion	WR10100	6 weeks

**\*R2 = Repeatable, up to a maximum of six weeks per 12 months for inmates participating in the EOP, Mental Health Treatment Plan, In-Patient Mental Health Treatment Plan and DDP Group Assignments,**

## Academic Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

Rehabilitative Reentry Hub Programs			
Reentry Hub	Cognitive Behavior Therapy – Substance Abuse Treatment	RH10100	6 weeks
Reentry Hub Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavioral Therapy Treatment – Anger Management	RHP10200	4 2 weeks
Reentry HubRehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavioral Therapy Treatment – Criminal Thinking	RHP10300	4 2 weeks
Reentry HubRehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavioral Therapy Treatment – Family Relationships	RHP10400	4 2 weeks
Reentry HubRehabilitative Programs	Transitions	RHP10500	4 2 weeks
SUDT	Cognitive Behavioral Treatment Substance Use Disorder – 3 Months	S0340300	3 weeks *R3
SUDT	Cognitive Behavioral Treatment Substance Use Disorder – 5 Months	S0440500	5 4 weeks *R3
SUDT	Cognitive Behavioral Treatment Substance Use Disorder – 6 Months	S0540600	5 weeks *R3
Long Term Offender Program			
LTOP	Cognitive Behavioral Treatment – Substance Use Disorder	LT10100	4 weeks
LTOP	Cognitive Behavioral Treatment – Anger Management	LT10200	2 weeks
LTOP	Cognitive Behavioral Treatment – Criminal Thinking	LT10300	2 weeks
LTOP	Cognitive Behavioral Treatment – Family Relationships	LT10400	2 weeks
LTOP	Cognitive Behavioral Treatment – Victim Impact	LT10500	2 weeks
LTOP	Cognitive Behavioral Treatment – Denial Management	LT10600	2 weeks
Internet Protocol Television Milestone Descriptions and Codes			
Education			
Education	College Preparatory Algebra I and II	IP10100	2 weeks
Education	College Preparatory Micro & Macro Economics	IP10200	3 weeks
Education	College Preparatory US History 1850-1950 Bundle	IP10300	2 weeks
Education	English Language Acquisition	IP10400	3 weeks
TLM Coding	Track 1	IP10401	7 weeks
TLM Coding	Track 2	IP10402	7 weeks
Employment			
Employment	Workforce Readiness	IP10500	2 weeks
Freedom			
Freedom	Anger Management	IP10600	1 week
Freedom	Financial Security and Money Management	IP10700	3 weeks
Freedom	Preparing for Success After Prison	IP10800	3 weeks
Freedom	Preparing For Success After Prison – Edited Version	IP10900	1 week
Wellness			
Wellness	Leadership	IP10111	1 week
Wellness	Life Skills	IP10112	1 week
Wellness	Nutrition	IP10113	1 week
Wellness	Parenting	IP10114	1 week

**Academic Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)**

**e-Reader Milestone Descriptions and Codes**

Education

<u>Education</u>	<u>Step Down Literature</u>	<u>IP10115</u>	<u>3 weeks</u>
------------------	-----------------------------	----------------	----------------

\*R3 = Repeatable during new term

<b>General Milestone Description and Codes</b>			
<b>Inmates Putting Away Childish Things (IMPACT)</b>			
IMPACT	Module 1	I010100	1 week
IMPACT	Module 2	I010200	1 week
IMPACT	Module 3	I010300	1 week
IMPACT	Module 4	I010400	1 week
IMPACT	Module 5	I010500	1 week
<b>Victim Offender Education Group (VOEG)</b>			
VOEG	Section 1	OE10100	1 week
VOEG	Section 2	OE10200	1 week
VOEG	Section 3	OE10300	1 week
VOEG	Section 4	OE10400	1 week
VOEG	Sections 1 and 2	OE10500	1 week
VOEG	Sections 3 and 4	OE10600	1 week
<b>Addiction Recovery Counseling (ARC)</b>			
ARC	Certification	RC101001	6 7 weeks
<b>Guiding Rage Into Power (GRIP)</b>			
GRIP	Course Completion	GR101001	4 2 weeks
<b>Golden Gate Baptist Theological Seminary (Northbay School of Theology)</b>			
GGBTS	Diploma Christian Ministries	TS101001	6 5 weeks
GGBTS	Diploma Theology	TS102001	6 5 weeks
<b>The Urban Ministry Institute (TUMI)</b>			
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 1</del>	<del>TM10100</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 2</del>	<del>TM10200</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 3</del>	<del>TM10300</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 4</del>	<del>TM10400</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 5</del>	<del>TM10500</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 6</del>	<del>TM10600</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 7</del>	<del>TM10700</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 8</del>	<del>TM10800</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 9</del>	<del>TM10900</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 10</del>	<del>TM10110</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 11</del>	<del>TM10111</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 12</del>	<del>TM10112</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 13</del>	<del>TM10113</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 14</del>	<del>TM10114</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 15</del>	<del>TM10115</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Module 16</del>	<del>TM10116</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Modules 1 and 2</del>	<del>TM10117</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Modules 3 and 4</del>	<del>TM10118</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Modules 5 and 6</del>	<del>TM10119</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Modules 7 and 8</del>	<del>TM10120</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Modules 9 and 10</del>	<del>TM10121</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Modules 11 and 12</del>	<del>TM10122</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Modules 13 and 14</del>	<del>TM10123</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<del>TUMI</del>	<del>Modules 15 and 16</del>	<del>TM10124</del>	<del>1 week</del>
<b>Alternatives to Violence Program (AVP)</b>			
AVP	Basic Completion	AV10100	1 week
AVP	Advanced Completion	AV10200	1 week
AVP	Facilitator Training	AV10300	1 week
AVP	Facilitator Certification	AV10400	3 weeks
AVP	Basic and Advanced Completion	AV10500	1 week
AVP	Facilitator Training and Certification	AV10600	1 week
AVP	Lead Team Coordinator	AV10700	2 weeks

## General Milestone Description and Codes (continued)

<u>Verb Braille Program</u>			
Verb Braille Program	Course Completion	ILTG001	3 weeks
<u>Prisoners Overcoming Obstacles &amp; Creating Hope (POOCH) Dog program</u>			
POOCH	Course Completion	ILTG002	5 weeks
<u>Marley's Mutts Dog Program</u>			
Marley's Mutts	Course Completion	MM10100	6 weeks
<u>New Life K-9</u>			
NLK9	Course Completion	NL10100	8 weeks
<u>Peacemaker's Alliance</u>			
Peacemaker Alliance	Peacemakers Alliance Critical Literacy and Peace Education	ILTG003	2 weeks
Peacemaker Alliance	Peacemakers Alliance Community Transformation (PACT) and Building Peaceful Communities Retreat	ILTG004	1 week
<u>The Last Mile</u>			
The Last Mile	<del>Course Completion</del> Track 1	ILTG006	<del>4</del> 7 weeks
The Last Mile	<del>New Professionals /Career Development and Understanding</del> Track 2	ILTG007	<del>4</del> 7 weeks
<del>The Last Mile</del>	<del>Alpha Faith Based Prison Program</del>	<del>ILTG008</del>	<del>4</del> weeks
<u>Delancey Street Program</u>			
DSP	Each 3 months of program plan activities completed	DS10100	3 weeks *R7
<u>Male Community Reentry Program (MCRP)/Custody to Community Transitional Reentry Program(CCTRP) Community Prisoner Mother Program (CPMP)</u>			
MCRP/CCTRP/CPMP	Each 3 months of program plan activities completed	ITRP100	3 weeks *R8
<u>Inmate Ward Labor</u>			
Inmate Ward Labor	Multi-Craft Core Curriculum	W01L1001	≥ 7 weeks
<u>Institution Firefighters</u>			
Firefighting (Inst)	Basic Firefighter Block Training	FH101001	2 1 weeks
Firefighting (Inst)	State Fire Marshal-approved Firefighter 1 Training	FH102001	2 7 weeks
Firefighting (Inst)	First Responder Medical Training	FH103001	4 2 weeks
Firefighting (Inst)	Hazardous Materials/Confined Space Training	FH104001	4 2 weeks
<u>Camp Firefighters</u>			
Firefighting (Camp)	Physical Fitness/Firefighter Training	FC101001	4 3 weeks
Firefighting (Camp)	Fire Brigade Training	FC102001	4 2 weeks
Firefighting (Camp)	Waste-Water Certificate-Grade 1	FC103001	4 8 weeks
Firefighting (Camp)	Waste-Water Certificate-Grade 2	FC104001	4 8 weeks
Firefighting (Camp)	Water Treatment Certificate – Grade 1	FC105001	4 8 weeks
Firefighting (Camp)	Water Treatment Certificate – Grade 2	FC106001	4 8 weeks
Firefighting (Camp)	Distribution Certificate – Grade 1	FC10700	1 week
Firefighting (Camp)	Distribution Certificate – Grade 2	FC10800	1 week
Firefighting (Camp)	Basic Helicopter S-271	FC109002	2 3 weeks
Firefighting (Camp)	Wildland Chain Saw Sawyer Level A	FC10901	3 weeks

**\*Credit will be awarded upon assignment to camp.**

**\*R7 = Repeatable during same or new term for Delancey Street Program**

**\*R8 = Repeatable during same or new term for MCRP/CCTRP**

## California Prison Industry Authority - Milestone Descriptions and Codes

<u>Optical</u>			
Am. Board of Opticianry	Optician	PBOPT042	6 <u>4</u> weeks
<u>Baking</u>			
Am. Institute of Baking	Bread/Rolls	PIBAK046	4 <u>3</u> weeks
Am. Institute of Baking	Cake/Sweet Goods	PIBAK027	4 <u>3</u> weeks
Am. Institute of Baking	Foundations	PIBAK038	4 <u>3</u> weeks
Am. Institute of Baking	Ingredient Technician	PIBAK049	4 <u>3</u> weeks
Am. Institute of Baking	Science of Baking	PIBAK0510	4 <u>3</u> weeks
<u>Welding</u>			
Am. Welding Society	MIG – GMAW-1	PWEL0045	4 <u>3</u> weeks
Am. Welding Society	TIG – GTAW-1	PWEL0026	2 <u>3</u> weeks
Am. Welding Society	TIG – GTAW-2	PWEL0037	2 <u>3</u> weeks
Am. Welding Society	TIG – GTAW-3	PWEL0048	2 <u>3</u> weeks
<u>Braille</u>			
Braille – Library of Congress	Level I – Literary Braille Transcribing	PBRAL047	4 <u>5</u> weeks
Braille – Library of Congress	Level II – Literary Braille Proofreading	PBRAL028	4 <u>5</u> weeks
Braille – Library of Congress	Level III – Music Braille Transcribing	PBRAL039	4 <u>5</u> weeks
Braille – Library of Congress	Level IV – Mathematics Braille Transcribing	PBRAL0410	4 <u>5</u> weeks
Braille – Library of Congress	Level V – Mathematics Braille Proofreading	PBRAL0511	4 <u>5</u> weeks
National Braille Association, Inc.	Braille Formats - Textbook Formatting	PBRAL06	5 weeks
<u>Food and Agriculture</u>			
CA Dept. Food & Ag.	Artificial Insemination License	PFOOD01	1 week
CA Dept. Food & Ag.	Pasteurizer License	PFOOD024	2 <u>1</u> weeks
CA Dept. Food & Ag.	Sampler/Weigher License	PFOOD035	4 <u>3</u> weeks
<u>Electronics</u>			
Electron Tech Assn	Customer Service Specialist	PELEC044	4 <u>2</u> weeks
Electron Tech Assn	Certified Electronics Technician	PELEC02	3 weeks
Electron Tech Assn	Journeyman (Industrial)	PELEC036	8 <u>3</u> weeks
<u>Forklift</u>			
Overton Safety Training, Inc.	Forklift – Industrial	PFORK044	4 <u>2</u> weeks
Overton Safety Training, Inc.	Forklift – Hand Truck	PFORK025	4 <u>2</u> weeks
Overton Safety Training, Inc.	Forklift – Construction	PFORK03	2 weeks
<u>Linen</u>			
Nat Assn Linen Mgt.	Certified Linen Technician	PLIN0044	2 <u>3</u> weeks
Nat Assn Linen Mgt.	Certified Washroom Technician	PLIN0025	2 <u>3</u> weeks
Nat Assn Linen Mgt.	Certified Laundry Linen Manager	PLIN003	3 weeks

## California Prison Industry Authority - Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

<u>Metal Skills</u>			
Nat Inst Metal Skills	Machining, Level I	PMET00 <del>4</del> <u>4</u>	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Nat Inst Metal Skills	Metal Forming, Level I	PMET00 <del>2</del> <u>5</u>	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Nat Inst Metal Skills	Metal Stamping, Level II	PMET00 <del>3</del> <u>6</u>	2 <u>4</u> weeks
<u>Restaurant Association</u>			
Nat Restaurant Assn	ServSafe Essentials	PREST0 <del>3</del> <u>5</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
Nat Restaurant Assn	ServSafe Food Handler	PREST04	1 week
<u>HVAC</u>			
No Am Tech Excellence	Installation: HVAC – A/C	PHVAC0 <del>1</del> <u>1</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
No Am Tech Excellence	Installation: HVAC – Air Distribution	PHVAC0 <del>1</del> <u>2</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
No Am Tech Excellence	Installation: Pumps – Heat Pumps	PHVAC0 <del>1</del> <u>3</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
No Am Tech Excellence	Installation: Pumps – Gas Heat	PHVAC0 <del>1</del> <u>4</u>	4 <u>3</u> weeks
No Am Tech Excellence	Installation: Pumps – Oil Heat	PHVAC0 <del>1</del> <u>5</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
No Am Tech Excellence	Service HVAC – A/C	PHVAC0 <del>1</del> <u>6</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
No Am Tech Excellence	Service: HVAC – Air Distribution	PHVAC0 <del>1</del> <u>7</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
No Am Tech Excellence	Service: Pumps – Heat Pumps	PHVAC0 <del>1</del> <u>8</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
No Am Tech Excellence	Service: Pumps – Gas Heat	PHVAC0 <del>1</del> <u>9</u>	4 <u>3</u> weeks
No Am Tech Excellence	Service: Pumps – Oil Heat	PHVAC <del>4</del> <u>20</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
<u>Print</u>			
Print Indust of America	Sheet-fed Offset Press	PPRNT0 <del>4</del> <u>5</u>	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Print Indust of America	Web Offset Press	PPRNT0 <del>2</del> <u>6</u>	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Print Indust of America	Pre-Press	PPRNT0 <del>3</del> <u>7</u>	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Print Indust of America	Bindery	PPRNT0 <del>4</del> <u>8</u>	2 <u>4</u> weeks
<u>Dental</u>			
Product. Training Corp	Dental Technician	PDTEC0 <del>4</del> <u>2</u>	6 <u>4</u> weeks
<u>Machinery</u>			
Stiles Machinery Inc	Intermed. Weeke Machining Center Prog.	PSTIL0 <del>4</del> <u>2</u>	2 <u>3</u> weeks
<u>Career Tech</u>			
<u>Career Tech 7370 Computer Coding</u>	<u>Code 7370 Computer Coding Track 1</u>	<u>PCT0100</u>	<u>3 weeks</u>
<u>Career Tech 7370 Computer Coding</u>	<u>Code 7370 Computer Coding Track 2</u>	<u>PCT0200</u>	<u>3 weeks</u>
<u>Career Tech AutoCAD</u>	<u>AutoCAD Drafting</u>	<u>PCT0300</u>	<u>3 weeks</u>
<u>Career Tech AutoCAD</u>	<u>Inventor</u>	<u>PCT0400</u>	<u>3 weeks</u>
<u>Career Tech AutoCAD</u>	<u>Revit</u>	<u>PCT0500</u>	<u>3 weeks</u>
<u>Career Tech Culinary</u>	<u>Core-Classroom Curriculum</u>	<u>PCT0600</u>	<u>3 weeks</u>
<u>Career Tech Ironworker</u>	<u>Core-Classroom Curriculum</u>	<u>PCIRN01</u>	<u>3 weeks</u>

## California Prison Industry Authority - Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

<b>Career Tech (continued)</b>			
Career Tech Ironworker	Horizontal Welding	PCIRN02	1 week
Career Tech Ironworker	Vertical Welding	PCIRN03	1 week
Career Tech Ironworker	Overhead Welding	PCIRN04	1 week
Career Tech Ironworker	Pipe Welding	PCIRN05	1 week
Career Tech Carpentry	Core-Classroom Curriculum	PCCAR01	3 weeks
Career Tech Laborer	Lead Worker/Mentor Training	PCCAR034	4 <u>3</u> weeks
Career Tech Dive	Rigger Course Program	PCDIV046	4 <u>4</u> weeks
Career Tech Dive	Top Side Welder Course Program	PCDIV027	4 <u>4</u> weeks
Career Tech Dive	Dive Tender Course Program	PCDIV038	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Career Tech Dive	Mixed Gas Rack Operator Course Prog.	PCDIV049	2 <u>4</u> weeks
Career Tech Dive	Commercial Diver/Commercial Dive Insp.	PCDIV0510	7 <u>5</u> weeks
<b>TPC Training Systems</b>			
TPC Training System	Reading Blueprints	PTPC1010	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Reading Schematics and Symbols	PTPC1020	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Mathematics in the Plant	PTPC1030	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Making Measurements	PTPC1040	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Metals in the Plant	PTPC1050	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Nonmetals in the Plant	PTPC1060	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Hand Tools	PTPC1070	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Portable Power Tools	PTPC1080	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Industrial Safety and Health	PTPC1090	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Troubleshooting Skills	PTPC1100	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Basic Electricity and Electronics	PTPC2010	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Batteries and DC Circuits	PTPC2020	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Transformers and AC Circuits	PTPC2030	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Electrical Measuring Instruments	PTPC2040	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Electrical Safety and Protection	PTPC2050	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	DC Equipment and Controls	PTPC2060	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Single Phase Motors	PTPC2070	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Three Phase Systems	PTPC2080	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	AC Control Equipment	PTPC2090	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Electrical Troubleshooting	PTPC2100	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Electrical Safety – Understanding NFPA 70E	PTPC2110	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Basic Mechanics	PTPC3010	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Lubricants and Lubrication	PTPC3020	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Power Transmission Equipment	PTPC3030	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Bearings	PTPC3040	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Pumps	PTPC3050	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Piping Systems	PTPC3060	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Basic Hydraulics	PTPC3070	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Hydraulic Troubleshooting	PTPC3080	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Basic Pneumatics	PTPC3090	4 <u>3</u> weeks

## California Prison Industry Authority - Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

### TPC Training System (continued)

TPC Training System	Pneumatic Troubleshooting	PTPC3100	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Introduction to Packaging	PTPC3110	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Packaging Machinery	PTPC3120	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Casing Machinery	PTPC3130	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Machine Shop Practices	PTPC3150	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Machine Shop Turning Operations	PTPC3160	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Machine Shop Shaping Operations	PTPC3170	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Machine Shop <del>Shaping Operations</del> Job Analysis	PTPC3230	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Lathe - Turning Work Between Centers	PTPC3240	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Lathe - Machining Work in a Chuck	PTPC3250	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Basic Milling Procedures	PTPC3260	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Indexed Milling Procedures	PTPC3270	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Multiple-Machine Procedures	PTPC3280	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Mechanical Drive Maintenance	PTPC3410	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Mechanical and Fluid Drive Systems	PTPC3420	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Bearing and Shaft Seal Maintenance	PTPC3430	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Pump Installation and Maintenance	PTPC3440	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Maintenance Pipefitting	PTPC3450	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Tubing and Hose System Maintenance	PTPC3460	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Valve Maintenance & Piping Sys. Protection	PTPC3470	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Introduction to Carpentry	PTPC3610	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Constructing the Building Shell	PTPC3620	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Finishing the Building Interior	PTPC3630	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Structural Painting	PTPC3640	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Flat Roof Maintenance	PTPC3660	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Plumbing Systems Maintenance	PTPC3670	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Landscaping Maintenance	PTPC3750	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Blueprint Reading for Welders	PTPC4160	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Welding Principles	PTPC4170	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Oxyfuel Operations	PTPC4180	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Arc Welding Operations	PTPC4190	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Cleaning Chemicals	PTPC4510	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Floors and Floor Care Equipment	PTPC4520	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Maintaining Floors and Other Surfaces	PTPC45230	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Rest Room Care	PTPC4540	4 <u>3</u> weeks
TPC Training System	Carpet and Upholstery Care	PTPC4550	4 <u>3</u> weeks

**Community Correctional Facilities Administration (CCF)  
Milestone Completion Credit Schedule**

**Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes**

<b>Electronics</b>			
Electronics	Core	V0400C0	1 week
Electronics	Level I	V0400L1	2 weeks
Electronics	Level II	V0400L2	2 weeks
Electronics	Level III	V0400L3	2 weeks
Electronics	Level IV	V0400L4	2 weeks
<b>Office Services and Related Technology</b>			
OSRT	Microsoft Level 1	V0601042	4 weeks
OSRT	Microsoft Level 2	V0602001	4 weeks
OSRT	Microsoft Level 3	V0603001	4 weeks
<b>Graphic Arts</b>			
Graphic Design	Graphic Design Core	V0704C000	5 weeks
Graphic Design	Graphic Design Level I	V0704L4000	5 weeks
<b>Carpentry</b>			
Carpentry	Core	V0801C0	1 week
Carpentry	Level I	V0804L100	5 weeks
Carpentry	Level II	V0804L200	6 weeks
Carpentry	Level III	V0804L300	4 weeks
Carpentry	Level IV	V0804L400	5 weeks
<b>Building Maintenance</b>			
Building Maintenance	Core	V0906C0	1 week
Building Maintenance	Level I	V0906L100	4 weeks
Building Maintenance	Level II	V0906L200	6 weeks
Building Maintenance	Level III	V0906L300	4 weeks
Building Maintenance	Level IV	V0906L400	5 weeks
<b>Electrical</b>			
Electrical	Core	V1005C01	2 weeks
Electrical	Level I	V1005L100	6 weeks
Electrical	Level II	V1005L200	4 weeks
Electrical	Level III	V1005L300	4 weeks
Electrical	Level IV	V1005L400	4 weeks
<b>HVAC</b>			
HVAC	Core	V1107C01	2 weeks
HVAC	Level I	V1107L100	4 weeks
HVAC	Level II	V1107L200	6 weeks
HVAC	Level III	V1107L3	2 weeks
HVAC	Level IV	V1107L4	2 weeks
<b>Plumbing</b>			
Plumbing	Core	V1304C01	3 weeks
Plumbing	Level I	V1304L500	6 weeks
Plumbing	Level II	V1304L600	5 weeks
Plumbing	Level III	V1304L700	5 weeks
Plumbing	Level IV	V1304L800	5 weeks
<b>Painting &amp; Drywall</b>			
Painting/Drywall	Core	V3001C0	3 weeks
Painting/Drywall	Level I	V3002L1	2 weeks
Painting/Drywall	Level II	V3003L2	3 weeks

**CCF - Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)****Computer Literacy**

Computer Literacy	Core	V1601001	4 <u>4</u> weeks
-------------------	------	----------	------------------

**Computer Repair**

COMPTIA	Core	V3003C0	3 weeks
---------	------	---------	---------

COMPTIA	Level I	V3003L3	3 weeks
---------	---------	---------	---------

**Horticulture/Landscaping**

Horticulture/Landscaping	Core	V3004C0	5 weeks
--------------------------	------	---------	---------

## CCF Academic Milestone Descriptions and Codes

ABE I			
ABE I	0.0 - 1.9 grade point level	A0101001	2 4 weeks
ABE I	2.0 - 2.9 grade point level	A0102001	2 4 weeks
ABE I	3.0 - 3.9 grade point level	A0103001	2 4 weeks
ABE II			
ABE II	4.0 - 4.9 grade point level	A0204001	2 4 weeks
ABE II	5.0 - 5.9 grade point level	A0205001	2 4 weeks
ABE II	6.0 - 6.9 grade point level	A0206001	2 4 weeks
ABE III			
ABE III	7.0 - 7.9 grade point level	A0307001	2 4 weeks
ABE III	8.0 - 8.9 grade point level	A0308001	2 4 weeks
ABE III	9.0 - 9.9 grade point level	A0309001	2 4 weeks
High School Equivalency			
HSE	<del>Language Arts, Reading and Writing subtest</del>	<del>G010101</del>	<del>2 4 weeks</del>
HSE	<del>Social Studies subtest</del>	<del>G010200</del>	<del>1 3 weeks</del>
HSE	<del>Mathematics subtest</del>	<del>G010300</del>	<del>1 3 weeks</del>
HSE	<del>Science subtest</del>	<del>G010400</del>	<del>1 3 weeks</del>
HSE	HSE Completion	G020100	1 week
High School			
HS	English 1 <sup>st</sup> Course	H0101001	4 4 weeks
HS	English 2 <sup>nd</sup> Course	H0101101	4 4 weeks
HS	English 3 <sup>rd</sup> Course	H0101201	4 4 weeks
HS	Mathematics	H0103001	4 4 weeks
HS	Algebra I	H0102101	4 4 weeks
HS	General or Life Science	H0104043	4 4 weeks
HS	Earth or Physical Science	H0104024	4 4 weeks
HS	U.S. History or Geography	H0105043	4 4 weeks
HS	World History or Geography/Culture	H0105024	4 4 weeks
HS	American Government	H0106001	4 4 weeks
HS	Visual and Performing Arts/Fine Arts	H0108001	4 4 weeks
HS	Health	H0110001	4 3 weeks
HS	Job/Career Exploration	H0110002	4 3 weeks
HS	Elective Completed	H0112204	4 4 weeks *R4
College			
College	Each 3 Semester or 4-5 Quarter units completed	C01010410	4 2 weeks *R4
Literacy			
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 1	L0104B01	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 2	L0104B02	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 3	L0104B03	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 4	L0104B04	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 5	L0104B05	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 6	L0104B06	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 7	L0104B07	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 8	L0104B08	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 9	L0101B09	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 10	L0101B10	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 11	L0104B11	2 4 weeks
Literacy	CASAS Benchmark 12	L0104B12	2 4 weeks

\*R4 = Repeatable during same or new term for different classes/degrees

## CCF Academic Milestone Descriptions and Codes (continued)

<b>Math</b>			
Math	CASAS Benchmark 1	M0104B01	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 2	M0104B02	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 3	M0104B03	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 4	M0104B04	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 5	M0104B05	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 6	M0104B06	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 7	M0104B07	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 8	M0104B08	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 9	M0104B09	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 10	M0104B10	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 11	M0104B11	2 4 weeks
Math	CASAS Benchmark 12	M0104B12	2 4 weeks
<b>Rehabilitative Programs</b>			
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Substance Use Disorder	RHP10101	4 weeks
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Anger Management	RHP10200	2 weeks
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Criminal Thinking	RHP10300	2 weeks
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Family Relationships	RHP10400	2 weeks
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Transitions	RHP10500	2 weeks
<b>Substance Abuse Transitions Pre-Release Program</b>			
CSAP (CCF)	Course Completion	S0201001	6 8 weeks
<b>Internet Protocol Television Milestone Descriptions and Codes</b>			
<b>Education</b>			
Education	College Preparatory Algebra I and II	IP10100	2 weeks
Education	College Preparatory Micro & Macro Economics	IP10200	3 weeks
Education	College Preparatory US History 1850-1950 Bundle	IP10300	2 weeks
Education	English Language Acquisition	IP10400	3 weeks
TLM Coding	Track 1	IP10401	7 weeks
TLM Coding	Track 2	IP10402	7 weeks
<b>Employment</b>			
Employment	Workforce Readiness	IP10500	2 weeks
<b>Freedom</b>			
Freedom	Anger Management	IP10600	1 week
Freedom	Financial Security and Money Management	IP10700	3 weeks
Freedom	Preparing for Success After Prison	IP10800	3 weeks
Freedom	Preparing For Success After Prison – Edited Version	IP10900	1 week
<b>Wellness</b>			
Wellness	Leadership	IP10111	1 week
Wellness	Life Skills	IP10112	1 week
Wellness	Nutrition	IP10113	1 week
Wellness	Parenting	IP10114	1 week
<b>e-Reader Milestone Descriptions and Codes</b>			
<b>Education</b>			
Education	Step Down Literature	IP10115	3 weeks

**CCF General Milestone Descriptions and Codes****The Urban Ministry Institute (TUMI)**

<u>TUMI</u>	<u>Modules 1 and 2</u>	<u>TM10117</u>	<u>1 week</u>
<u>TUMI</u>	<u>Modules 3 and 4</u>	<u>TM10118</u>	<u>1 week</u>
<u>TUMI</u>	<u>Modules 5 and 6</u>	<u>TM10119</u>	<u>1 week</u>
<u>TUMI</u>	<u>Modules 7 and 8</u>	<u>TM10120</u>	<u>1 week</u>
<u>TUMI</u>	<u>Modules 9 and 10</u>	<u>TM10121</u>	<u>1 week</u>
<u>TUMI</u>	<u>Modules 11 and 12</u>	<u>TM10122</u>	<u>1 week</u>
<u>TUMI</u>	<u>Modules 13 and 14</u>	<u>TM10123</u>	<u>1 week</u>
<u>TUMI</u>	<u>Modules 15 and 16</u>	<u>TM10124</u>	<u>1 week</u>

**California Out-of-State Correctional Facilities (COCF) Milestones  
Credit Earning Schedule**

**COCF Academic Milestone Descriptions and Codes**

<b>ABE I</b>			
ABE I	0.0 - 1.9 grade point level	A010100 <del>1</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE I	2.0 - 2.9 grade point level	A010200 <del>1</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE I	3.0 - 3.9 grade point level	A010300 <del>1</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
<b>ABE II</b>			
ABE II	4.0 - 4.9 grade point level	A020400 <del>1</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE II	5.0 - 5.9 grade point level	A020500 <del>1</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE II	6.0 - 6.9 grade point level	A020600 <del>1</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
<b>ABE III</b>			
ABE III	7.0 - 7.9 grade point level	A030700 <del>1</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE III	8.0 - 8.9 grade point level	A030800 <del>1</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
ABE III	9.0 - 9.9 grade point level	A030900 <del>1</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
<b>High School Equivalency</b>			
HSE	<del>Language Arts, Reading and Writing subtest</del>	<del>G010101</del>	<del>2</del> <u>4</u> weeks
HSE	<del>Social Studies subtest</del>	<del>G010200</del>	<del>1</del> <u>3</u> weeks
HSE	<del>Mathematics subtest</del>	<del>G010300</del>	<del>1</del> <u>3</u> weeks
HSE	<del>Science subtest</del>	<del>G010400</del>	<del>1</del> <u>3</u> weeks
HSE	HSE Completion	G020100	1 week
<b>English as a Second Language (ESL) Programs</b>			
ESL	Beginning ESL I	COCESL <del>4</del> 5	<del>2</del> <u>3</u> weeks
ESL	Beginning ESL II	COCESL <del>2</del> 6	<del>2</del> <u>3</u> weeks
ESL	Intermediate ESL	COCESL <del>3</del> 7	<del>2</del> <u>3</u> weeks
ESL	Advanced ESL	COCESL48	<del>2</del> <u>3</u> weeks
<b>Adult Education in Spanish Programs</b>			
INEA	Primaria	COCINE <del>4</del> 4	<del>4</del> <u>3</u> weeks
INEA	Secundaria	COCINE2	3 weeks
COBACH	Colegio de Bachilleres	COCINE3	3 weeks
<b>College</b>			
College	Each 3 Semester or 4-5 Quarter units completed	<del>COCFC</del> COCFC010110	<del>1</del> <u>2</u> weeks <b>*R5</b>

**\*R5 = Repeatable during same or new term for different classes/degrees [COCFC010110](#)**

## COCF Academic Milestone Descriptions and Codes continued

### Internet Protocol Television Milestone Descriptions and Codes

<u>Education</u>			
Education	College Preparatory Algebra I and II	IP10100	2 weeks
Education	College Preparatory Micro & Macro Economics	IP10200	3 weeks
Education	College Preparatory US History 1850-1950 Bundle	IP10300	2 weeks
Education	English Language Acquisition	IP10400	3 weeks
TLM Coding	Track 1	IP10401	7 weeks
TLM Coding	Track 2	IP10402	7 weeks
<u>Employment</u>			
Employment	Workforce Readiness	IP10500	2 weeks
<u>Freedom</u>			
Freedom	Anger Management	IP10600	1 week
Freedom	Financial Security and Money Management	IP10700	3 weeks
Freedom	Preparing for Success After Prison	IP10800	3 weeks
Freedom	Preparing For Success After Prison – Edited Version	IP10900	1 week
<u>Wellness</u>			
Wellness	Leadership	IP10111	1 week
Wellness	Life Skills	IP10112	1 week
Wellness	Nutrition	IP10113	1 week
Wellness	Parenting	IP10114	1 week
e-Reader Milestone Descriptions and Codes			
<u>Education</u>			
Education	Step Down Literature	IP10115	3 weeks

## COCF COGNITIVE BEHAVIORAL MILESTONE DESCRIPTIONS and CODES

<u>Rehabilitative Programs</u>			
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Substance Use Disorder	RHP10101	4 weeks
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Anger Management	RHP10200	2 weeks
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Criminal Thinking	RHP10300	2 weeks
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Family Relationships	RHP10400	2 weeks
Rehabilitative Programs	Cognitive Behavior Treatment - Transitions	RHP10500	2 weeks
Criminal Thinking	Thinking For A Change (T4C)	COCT4C42	4 3 weeks
Anger Management	Understand and Reducing Anger Feelings (TCU)	COCTCU42	4 3 weeks
Criminal Thinking	Unlock Your Thinking, Open Your Mind	COCUYT42	4 3 weeks
<u>COCF Substance Abuse Program</u>			
RDAP	Level I Course Completion	COCFRD01	4 3 weeks *R6
RDAP	Level II Course Completion	COCFRD02	4 3 weeks *R6
RDAP	Level III Course Completion	COCFRD03	4 3 weeks *R6
RDAP	Level IV Course Completion	COCFRD04	4 3 weeks *R6
RDAP	Level V Course Completion	COCFRD05	4 3 weeks *R6
RDAP	Level VI Course Completion	COCFRD06	4 3 weeks *R6

\*R6 = Repeatable during new term [Substance Abuse Programs](#)

## COCF Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes

Braille— Library of Congress	Level I— Literary Braille Transcribing	COCBRA1	4 weeks
Braille— Library of Congress	Level II— Literary Braille Proofreading	COCBRA2	4 weeks
Braille— Library of Congress	Level III— Music Braille Transcribing	COCBRA3	4 weeks
Braille— Library of Congress	Level IV— Mathematic Braille Transcribing	COCBRA4	4 weeks
Braille— Library of Congress	Level V— Mathematics Braille Proofreading	COCBRA5	4 weeks
<b>Carpentry</b>			
Carpentry	Core	COCCAR46	4 3 weeks
Carpentry	Level I	COCCAR27	2 3 weeks
Carpentry	Level II	COCCAR38	2 3 weeks
Carpentry	Level III	COCCAR4	2 weeks
Carpentry	Level IV	COCCAR5	2 weeks
CAD	Blueprint Reader	COCCAD1	1 week
CAD	Drafting Assistant	COCCAD2	2 weeks
CAD	Architectural Detailer	COCCAD3	1 week
CAD	Architectural CAD Drafter 1	COCCAD4	1 week
CAD	Architectural CAD Drafter II	COCCAD5	1 week
CAD	Drafter Architectural I	COCCAD6	1 week
CAD	Drafter Architectural II	COCCAD7	1 week
<b>Computer Literacy / Office Service Related Technology</b>			
Computer Literacy	Core	COCOSR0	1 week
Computer/OSRT	Microsoft Level 1	COCOSR47	4 5 weeks
Computer/OSRT	Microsoft Level 2	COCOSR28	2 1 weeks
Computer/OSRT	Microsoft Level 3	COCOSR39	2 1 weeks
<b>Electrical</b>			
Electrical	Core	COCELE46	4 3 weeks
Electrical	Level I	COCELE27	2 3 weeks
Electrical	Level II	COCELE3	2 weeks
Electrical	Level III	COCELE4	2 weeks
Electrical	Level IV	COCELE5	2 weeks
<b>Gardening</b>			
Master Gardener	Level I	COCGAR44	4 5 weeks
Master Gardener	Level II	COCGAR2	1 week
Master Gardener	Level III	COCGAR3	1 week
<b>KY Workplace Essentials</b>			
KY Workpl. Essentials	Business Reading	COCWPE45	2 1 weeks
KY Workpl. Essentials	Business Math	COCWPE26	2 1 weeks
KY Workpl. Essentials	Business Communication and Writing	COCWPE37	2 1 weeks
KY Workpl. Essentials	Employment Readiness	COCWPE48	2 1 weeks

**COCF Career Technical Education Milestone Descriptions and Codes continued**

**Masonry**

Masonry	Core	COCMAS46	4 <u>2 weeks</u>
Masonry	Level I	COCMAS2	2 weeks
Masonry	Level II	COCMAS3	2 weeks
Masonry	Level III	COCMAS4	2 weeks
Masonry	Level IV	COCMAS5	2 weeks
Painting	Core	GOCPNT1	1 <u>week</u>
Painting	Level I	GOCPNT2	2 <u>weeks</u>
Painting	Level II	GOCPNT3	2 <u>weeks</u>
Painting	Level III	GOCPNT4	2 <u>weeks</u>
Painting	Level IV	GOCPNT5	2 <u>weeks</u>

**Plumbing**

Plumbing	Core	COCPLU10	4 <u>3 weeks</u>
Plumbing	Level I	COCPLU40	2 <u>3 weeks</u>
Plumbing	Level II	COCPLU50	2 <u>3 weeks</u>
Plumbing	Level III	COCPLU60	2 <u>3 weeks</u>
Plumbing	Level IV	COCPLU70	2 <u>3 weeks</u>

**Painting & Drywall**

Painting/Drywall	Core	V3001C0	3 <u>weeks</u>
Painting/Drywall	Level I	V3002L1	2 <u>weeks</u>
Painting/Drywall	Level II	V3003L2	3 <u>weeks</u>

**Horticulture/Landscaping**

Horticulture/Landscaping	Core	V3004C0	5 <u>weeks</u>
--------------------------	------	---------	----------------

**COCF General Milestone Descriptions and Codes**

**The Urban Ministry Institute (TUMI)**

TUMI	<u>Modules 1 and 2</u>	TM10117	1 <u>week</u>
TUMI	<u>Modules 3 and 4</u>	TM10118	1 <u>week</u>
TUMI	<u>Modules 5 and 6</u>	TM10119	1 <u>week</u>
TUMI	<u>Modules 7 and 8</u>	TM10120	1 <u>week</u>
TUMI	<u>Modules 9 and 10</u>	TM10121	1 <u>week</u>
TUMI	<u>Modules 11 and 12</u>	TM10122	1 <u>week</u>
TUMI	<u>Modules 13 and 14</u>	TM10123	1 <u>week</u>
TUMI	<u>Modules 15 and 16</u>	TM10124	1 <u>week</u>

# REPEAL

## INMATE DECLARATION OF GENERAL EDUCATION DEVELOPMENT (GED) ELIGIBILITY

I \_\_\_\_\_, CDC # \_\_\_\_\_  
(Print Inmate Name Legibly) (Print Legibly)

declare under penalty of perjury that I have never obtained or been awarded a High School Diploma, or its equivalent, or any type of post secondary degree (for example, an Associate Degree or Bachelor Degree) in an academic course of study.

I understand that by failing to disclose any of the above mentioned certificates, diplomas, degrees or their equivalents, that I make myself subject to the disciplinary process which includes forfeiture of credits including Milestone Completion Credits, and that I may be subject to criminal prosecution including prosecution for the felony of perjury.

I declare under the penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Inmate Signature and CDC # Date

\_\_\_\_\_  
County Where Signed

Witnessed by \_\_\_\_\_  
(Legibly Print CDCR Staff Name and Title)

\_\_\_\_\_  
Staff Witness Signature Date

# REPEAL

## TIME CREDIT WAIVER (PC § 2934)

I, \_\_\_\_\_, (print name) having been committed for an offense which occurred prior to January 1, 1983, understand that conduct credit is granted to me pursuant to Penal Code § 2931. I am aware that under Penal Code § 2931 my term is reduced by one-third for good behavior and participation. Such credit reduction is granted at the time of reception into the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation and can be taken away only for a disciplinary offense or for failure to participate in assigned activities.

I hereby waive my rights to the provisions of Penal Code § 2931. By making this voluntary waiver, I request the future Time Credit be granted pursuant to Penal Code § 2933 and, if eligible, Penal Code § 2933.05.

Penal Code § 2933 allows for every six months of continuous incarceration, a prisoner shall be awarded credit reductions from his or her term of confinement of six months. A lesser amount of credit based on this ratio shall be awarded for any lesser period of continuous incarceration. In addition to any credit awarded pursuant to Section 2933, the Department may also award eligible prisoners program credit reductions, pursuant to PC 2933.05, from his or her term of confinement.

I am aware that my credit earning status may be changed by the Department at any time. I am aware that I may be placed in zero credit earning status due to disciplinarys and gang member validation. When I am in lockup status due to a disciplinary infraction, zero credit may be applied for a period equal to the number of days of the disciplinary credit loss, this may be extended in six-month increments thereafter.

I am aware and agree that the penalties for disciplinary offenses committed by me are as follows:

Up to 360 days of credit may be denied or lost for any act specified as a division A-1 offense in section 3323(c) of the California Code of Regulations, Title 15.

Up to 180 days of credit may be denied or lost for any act specified as a Division A-2 offense in section 3323(d) of the California Code of Regulations, Title 15, or any other felony not listed as an A-1 offense.

Up to 90 days shall be denied or forfeited for commission of any misdemeanor.

Up to 30 days shall be denied or lost for any act that is a serious rules violation described in the California Code of Regulations, Title 15, unless such act is a misdemeanor or felony offense.

Up to 30 days shall be denied or lost by an inmate who is found by a court to be a vexatious litigant as defined in Section 3000 in the California Code of Regulations, Title 15.

This waiver will be effective only when accepted by the Department. I am also aware that this waiver is irrevocable.

SIGNED:	CDCR NUMBER:	DATE:
WITNESSED (SIGNATURE)	TITLE:	DATE:
WITNESS' NAME (PRINT OR TYPE):	This waiver is accepted by the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation and is effective (DATE):	